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To the Members of Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal
Analytics Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as
Fractal Analytics Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company" or "the Company")
and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") and its
associate, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
flnancial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as "the consolidated financial statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group and its associate as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows forthe yearthenended.

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; andthe design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of th
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specifled under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities underthose SAs are furlher described in the Audifols
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute
of Chartered Accountants of lndia and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of
the "Other Matters" section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

BSR&Co {apartnershefirmwithRegrstratimNo 8A61223)convertedintoBSR&Co LLP(a
Limited Liabilily Partnership with LLP Regislctio No AA8-8181) with effect from Oclober 14 2013 Center
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BSR&Co.LLP

lndependent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private
Limited)

to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fairview
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated flnancial statements by the Management and Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of each
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto doso.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated fi nancial statements.

As paft of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and pefform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a.basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higherthan for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override of
internal control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncedainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditois report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its associate to expres e consolidated

of the auditflnancial statements. We are responsible for the direction, sup
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BSR&Co.LLP

lndependent Auditor's Report (Conti n ued)

Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private
Limited)

of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible forourauditopinion. Ourresponsibilities inthis regard are furtherdescribed in paragraph
(a)of the section titled "Other Matters" in this audit repoft.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during eur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

a. We did not audit the flnancial statements of nine subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.857.52 million as at 31 March 2024, total
revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.690.00 million and net cash inflows (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs.34.82 million forthe year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the otherauditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

b. The financial statements/financial information of twenty two subsidiaries (including step-down
subsidiaries), whose financial statements/financial information reflects total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 2,767.14 million as at 31 March 2024, total revenues (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 3,403.55 million and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) of Rs. 191.28 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, have not been audited either by us or by other auditors. The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss (and other comprehensive loss) of Rs.

165.59 million for the year ended 31 March 2024, as considered in the consolidated flnancial
statements, in respect of one associate (including its step down sbsidiaries), whose financial
statements/financial information have not been audited by us or by other auditors. These unaudited
financial statements/financial information has been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, is based
solely on such unaudited financial statements / financial information. ln our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements /
financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report o Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this
statements/fi na ncia I i nformation certifl ed by the Ma na gement.

to the financial
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BSR&Co.LLP

lndependent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private
Limited)

1. As required by the Companies (Audito/s Report) Order,2020 ("the Ordei') issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section '143(3) of theAct, based on ouraudit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the "Other Matters" paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule
11(g)of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014and thatthe back-up of the books of
account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode in respect of the Holding
Company and eight subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in lndia has not been kept on
seryers physically located in lndia.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financialstatements.

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified
under Section 133 ofthe Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
repods of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in lndia, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in lndia is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b)above on reporting underSection 143(3Xb)and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 1 1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in lndia and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the "Other Matters"
paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2024 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate. Refer Note 39(b) to
the consolidated fi nancial statements.

b. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or lnd AS, for material foreseeable losses, contracts includ tng

derivative contracts. Refer Note 32 to the consolidated fi

items as it relates to the Group and its associate
respect of such

ii

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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BSR&Co.LLP

lndependent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private
Limited)

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and associate company
incorporated in lndia during the yearended 31 March2024.

d (i)The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in lndia whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge
and bellef, as disclosed in the Note 41(i)tothe consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otheruise, that the lntermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company orany of such subsidiary companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in lndia whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the best of theirknowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the Note 41(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or othenruise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneflciaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been audited underthe Act, nothing has
come to our or other auditors notice that has caused us or other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i)and (ii)of Rule '11(e), as provided under (i)and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in lndia
has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, except for instances mentioned below, the Company and its subsidiary
comopanies have used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which along
with access management tool, as applicable, have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the respective softwares:

i. ln respect of the Holding Company and its eight subsidiaries, the feature of recording audittrail
(edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting software used for maintaining the general
ledger for the entire year

ii. ln respect of the Holding Company and its eight subsidiaries, the feature of recording audittrail
(edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting software used for maintaining the revenue
transactions forthe period April2023lo August 2023at application leveland forthe period April
2023to June2023 at database level

S iii. ln respect of the Holding Company and its eight subsidiaries, in the absence of an independent
auditor's repoft in relation to controls at a service org anisation for
for maintaining payroll master, which is operated by third p
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provider, we are
ed and operated
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unable to comment whether the audit trail feature for the
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BSR&Co.LLP

lndependent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private
Limited)

throughout the year for all the relevant tiansactions recorded in the software.

h. iv. ln respect of the Holding Company and its eight subsidiaries, in the absence of an independent

auditois report in relation to controls at a service organisation for an accounting software used
for payroll processing, which is operated by third party software service provider, we are unable

to comment whether the audit trail feature for the said software was enabled and operated during
the period 1 October 2023 to 31 March 2024 lor all the relevant transactions recorded in the
software.

Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year, we and the
auditors of the subsidiary companies did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with during the course of the audits.

C. With respectto the matterto be included in the Auditois Report under Section 197(16)of theAct:

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in lndia which were not audited
by us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and its

subsidiary companies incorporated in lndia since none of these companies is a public company. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which
are required to be commented upon by us.

FoTBSR&Go.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:1 01 248W //-1 00422

Place: Mumbai

Date:17 June2024

Rajesh Mehra

Partner

Membership No.:103145

lCAl UDIN:241 031 45BKF\ /l-1281 9
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal
Analytics Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

(xxi) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
companies incorporated in lndia and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by its respective auditors in their
repofts under the Companies (Audito/s Report) Order,2020 (CARO):

ctNSr. No. Holding
Company/Sub

sidiary/ JV/
Associate

Name of the
entities

u74999MH201
6PTC283206

2

Cuddle
Artificial

lntelligence
Private Limited

(xvii) relating to
cash losses

3 Subsidiary

Senseforth Al
Research
Private Limited

u72900KA 017
PTC101706

Clause
number of the
CARO report

which is
unfavourable
or qualified or

adverse

Name of the entities

Qure.ai Technologies
Private Limited

Subsidiary

u80904MP201
4PTC032389

clN

The above does not include comments, if any, in respect of the following entities as the CARO
report relating to them has not been issued by its auditortillthe date of principal auditois report.

Analytics
Vidhya Educon
Private Limited

(xvii) relating to

Subsidiary

cash losses

u74999MH201 6PTC28389 1

(xvii) relating to
cash losses

Page 7 of 'll
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal
Analytics Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

FoTBSR&CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:1 01248W ru-1 00022

Place:Mumbai

Date:17 June2024

Rajesh Mehra

Partner

Membership No.: 103145

lCAl UDIN:241 03145BKF\ 41281 9
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal Analytics
Private Limited) for the year ended 31 Marcn 2024

Report on the internalfinancial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

{Referred to in paragraph 2(nxg) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

ln conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly
known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") as of and
for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in lndia under the Act
which are its subsidiary companies,, as of that date.

ln our opinion and based on the consideration of report of the other auditor on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of a subsidiary company, as were audited by the other auditor, the
Holding Company and such company incorporated in lndia which is its subsidiary company, have, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controlswere operating effectively as at31 March2024, based onthe internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the
essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Auditof lnternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (the "Guidance
Note").

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal flnancial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exiSts, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the audito/s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finan whether due

Opinion

Auditor's Responsibility

Our,responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

to fraud or error
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Fractal Analytics Limited {formerly known as Fractal Analytics
Private Limited) for the year ended 31 Marcn 2A24 (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor
of the relevant subsidiary company in terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1 ) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflectthetransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financialstatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
flnancial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary
company, which is a company incorporated in lndia, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor
of such company incorporated in lndia.

The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one associate'
company, which is a company incorporated in lndia and included in these consolidated financial
statements, have not been audited either by us or by other auditor. ln our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, such unaudited associate company is not
material to the Holding Company

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Other Matter(s)
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Fractal Analytics Limited (formerly known as Fractal Analytics
Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 202;4 (Continued)

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

FoTBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. : 1 01 248WAIV-1 00022

r

Place:Mumbai

Date:17 June2024

Rajesh Mehra

Partner

Membership No.: 103145

lCAl UDIN:241 03145BKF\ lLL281 I
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Particulars Note
As at

(D) Non-current assets
h) Property, plant and equipment
b) Riqht-of-use assets
k) Goodwill
(d) Other Intanqible assets
(e) htangible assets under development
(0 Investment accounted for under the equity method
(q) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) other financial assets

- Bank deposits
- Others

(h) Defered tax assets (net)
(i) Income tax assets (net)
(i) Other non-current assets

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

(6.1)
(7)

non-current assets
Current assets

(a) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) other financial assets

(b) Other current assets

current ass€ts (B)

EQUITV AND LIABILITIES
(A) Equity

(a) Share capital

Equiry attributable to equiw holders of the Company
(c) Non-controllinq interest

March3',2024

ecuiW
(B) l-iabilities
(I) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowinqs
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities

y'ractal Analytics Limited
(f?rnerlv known as Fractal Analwcs Private Limited)

cansolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

March 31,2023
As at

1'-,537

London
Date: June 17, 2024

sasha Gulu Mirchandani
Dlrtrtor
DIN: 01179921

Total non-current
(II) Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowinqs
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

- Total outstandinq dues of micro and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises

(iv) other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

and Liabilities

Material accounting policies

472
468

3,475
t,229

7
4,479

72

80
187

399
L62
40

As per our reDort of even date attached.

11,516

CIN:

(7)

o1)
(11 )
(13)

(12)

(14)

t2t4O4

31

The accompanying notes form an inteqral part of the consolidated financial statements.

14,o57

14,199

4,927

4,794

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fractal Analytics Limited

Dir*tor

2,906
5,009
2,132

7T

269

1,150

FoTBSR&Co.LLP
CharEred Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 101248WW-100022

0t7227s8

London
Date: June 17, 2024

Company
Membership number: A17336

London
Date: June 17, 2024

227
1,166
3,513
1,356

59
4,259

79

9
L6
479
193

72

31

203

3,227
243
740
118

1,016

r42

(16)
(30)

a8)
(20)

a3)

2,501
913
310
187

1,016

2t8

40
472

2,454
1,408

148
54

35
273

5

566

1,866
1,242

110
18

Mumbai

Date: June 17, 2024

(16)
(30)
(17)

(18)
(t9)
(20)

10,950

4,455
5,333

812
66

282
65

1,391

(7)
(8)
(9a)
(9b)
(10)
(11)
(12)

41115

Rajesh Mehra
Paft1er
Membership Number: 103145



Particularc NoE

(1) Incorrle
(a) Revenu9 frot gperations

'otal Incd4g

(2) ExPenJes
(a) Emdoyee hnefits qpense
(b) Employee $ock option exp€nse
(c) Finance cosb

(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense

(3) (Loss) share of loss of an associate, exc€ptional items and tax expense (l-2)

(4) Share of (loss) of an associate

(6) Exceptional items

(8) Tax exp€ns€
(a) Current tax

(10) OtheJ comprehensive income
(1) Items that will not be rtrlassifled subsequently to pmfit or loss

(a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans
(b) Income tax on item (a) above

(2) Items that will b€ reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(a) EFfective @rtion of gains on of derivatives desiqnated as cash flow hedge
(b) Effective portion of gains on of derivatives designated as cash flow hedge reclassified to profit or loss
(c) Income tax on items (a) & (b) above
(d) Share of loss of asstriate (net of taxes) recognis€d in other comprehensive income

FractFl Analytics Limited
(formerty KVown as Fractal Analytica Private Limitd)

Conslidatdstatement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Loss)/Protit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent

Non-Controllinq Interest
Total

Other comprehensiye income for the yur attfbutable to:
Owne6 of the parent

Non-Controlling Interestx
Total

Total comprehensive (loss) /income for the year attributable tol
Owners of the parent

Non-Controlling Interest
Total

Earnings p€r share (Rupees per shale)
Face value of Rs 1 each
(1) Basic EPS

* Amount less than Rs I million

(21)

FoTBSR&Co. LLP
Charfutd AccountanE
Flrm's Registration Number: 101248WW-100022

Year ended
March 31,2023

(23)
(33)
(24)
(25)

Rajesh lrlehra
Partner
Membership Number: 103145

Mumbai
Date: June 17,2024

21,963

22.4L9

(163)

(ss)

t30s)

(1s.60)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CIN:

456

(26.1)

L9,854

Y6r ended
March 31,2024

(13)

s,239

2,030

1,944

L7,370
963

445
832

, AC6

The accompanyinq notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(37)

23
(6)

50
(7)

(11)
(2)

As Oer our report of even date attached.

16,08s
1,587

453
78t

(290)

t7932s
/8?)

(86)

97

0

97

2,t27
(86)

2,O4t

(38)

2

66.96

London
Date: June 17, 2024

a

(47s)
(72)

(547)

48
(0)

48

(427)
(72)

(499)

24
(7)

Dirctur
DIN:01722758

London
Date: June 17, 2024

London
Date: June 17, 2024

Sasha Gulu Milchandani
Ditetor
DIN:01179921

kh-
Membership number: A17336

-F



Particul.F

(/A)C""h lton frcm opentlDg acttvitl8
( Loss)/profrt before tax qrenr
4dilrtment fon
t€prqiation and amortization qrense
[2eP&iation on riqht of ue aset
Iiter$t qpens on borrcwings and lease liabilitiG
I/rteEt income on bank deDosits and l@n to directots
Uet qiin on redemotion/fair valuation of financial instruments

Utnreibed (16)/gain on foilard contracts
Iite.$t income on unwinding of wurw deposits

6an 0n 16 of contrcl of subsidiary (Refer note 26.1 and 37)

Lrnrenlsed foreign exchanqe (gain)/16 (net)
ErnDloy€ sttrk ootion expense
Grouosshare of lffi in a$iate
Reftqsu.ement of retained interGl in ass(iate
ItnPaiment in value of assets
Pluvbon tor tax Ettlement (Reter note 16(a))
Bad hbts
Provision for q!€cted credit loss and doubtful advancG
Operating @sh flow bcfor€ worklng @pital chang€

Adluitm€nt for ch6ng6 ln worklng €pltal!
(Increas) in trade r4eivabl6
(Incrss) / Decreas in other current financial assets
(Incrsse) in other non current financial assts
(IncnaE) in other current assets
DBrcas / (Increase) in other non cufient assts
(Dqbs) / Increase in trade payable
lncras in other non current financial liabilitiG
Inc@s in other current financial liabiliti6
Incras in provisions

hcrur / (D€r@s) in other current liabilit€
Cash genohted from orrations
Tax fEi{, (net of refunds)

Netash flow genor.ted from / (used in) oFratinq .ctlvltl€

(B) Cash flow frcm tnv$thg activltr'g
Purchas of prop€rty, plant and equipment and intanqible assts
Ldns reDayrent
Paymnt towards subscriDtion of muiw sha16
Amount rtreived on sle of financial assts
Payrcnt towards acquisition of sha€ from Non controllinq interGt
Matufty of bank depGits (net)
Payment of defened consideration
Purchas of mutual fund units
Matlity prtreds on rcdemption of mutual fund units
Inter6t on bank depsib
tlet qrh flow (u6€d in) / Oener.ted frcm lnv6tlng actlvitlB

(30s)

583
249
445
(30)

(28s1

(51)
(12)

41

963
163

5

1

43

(C) dth fto'9 frem fln.ncing acliyu$
Prtreeds from issue of equity shaE and share appli@tion rcney pending allotment
Prdeds frcm i$ue ofequity sha6 issued by subsidiary company to Non controllinq interst
Repaynent of L@€ liabilitie (Refer Note 30)
Int€ct pakJ during the y@r

Repayments of borrcwing
N€t qsh flow us€d ln tlnanclns actlvltie

Year ended

frrctal Analytics Limited
/onk tv known as Fractat AnaMis tuivate LtrniEd)

C?nblH.ted Sbt€nont ofC.Eh Flow. for th6 yer ended ltarch 31, 2024

l24s',

(401)

412

3,74

(339)

2,132

182

(137)
(6,651)

7,939

1,832
(1s9)

535
2S
433
(12)

(165)
45

(11)
(s,410)

(32\
1,587
2n

t7t

251
(01

(4',

76
(16l

(1,347\
96

(82)
(259)
(14)

54
140

45

The accompanyinq not6 fom an integ€l part of the conolidated financial statements.

tu per ouf report of even date attached.

ForESR&Co.LLP
chaftetd AmuntanB
Fim's Reqistration Number: 10l248WW-100022

20

100

Net (DeHs) / Incr@$ ln €sh and @.h equlv.l€nt (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
De60gnition of Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary
Effect of qchanqe rate change
Cash and @sh equlvalenb atth€ €nd ofthe y@r

Cash and @sh equlvalents @mpds of!
Cash in hand*
Ealance with bank:
In cufient accounts 812

6,866

(8,2031

RaJ6h l.lehr.
Painer
Mmbe6hip Number: 103145

*Amount l6s than Rs 1 million

1. The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has be€n Drepared under the 'Indirect Nlethod'as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'
2, Purchas of prcDerty, plant and {uipment and intanoiblg are shown inclusive of movements in Intanqible asst under development.

3. h.il. of borrowinqt
March 2024 Merch

3,256
(836)

8l

2023
Balance at the b€qinninq of the year

Cash movflent (net)
Effect of qchanqe rate chanqB

3,009
(2s)
272

0

2

2,132

151

14
(32s)
(389)

For and on

0

of the Soard of DiEtoB of
Fract€l Limited

CIN:

o

Direclot
DIN:0117q921

London
Date: June 17, 2024

--M
llembeEhip number: A17336

Mumbai
Date: June 17, 2024

I

London

Datei June 17, 2024

London
Dater June lZ 2024



Fractal AnalYtics Limited
(kmdy kMm B fraal ^Hfr6 Pnve unM)

Onslldetd Sbtcmcy't0lCh.nq6 in Equlry forh. yer.ndd tr.rch 31, X24

la) Eoutb3har6€r'lql
(in Ruffi millid)

PardcuhB XoE Anolnt

l*tud
(8) hshmenb.nftntvqui8 ln naturo - #s ! O.@1% omDulsdlv conv.rdblo orcfcrGnc..haB

tcl Oth.r eulU

fin Ruffi million)

PardcuhE ilob Amount

It€mi ol oSGr comprchlEiv€ incom

PardculaB Exchang. dltreroncg
on bansladng Sc

llnanclal sbhm.nb ofa
forclgn oFndon

3

&lanc a3atAprll

ff er comprehssive ift ome*

Tobl 15

IsM ofquiv shac
Share amli@Uon moftl Kdvd dudng Se ysr
Feqniuon of non cffilllru hEG dueb charee in rclaumship

from suddiary enEty b asslde edly
(Refer n@ 37)

tuurld6
pEmium

2022

I$ue of quity shar6'
share apdicsd monq6etvd dudnq beyea.
ftrqniUm of non cmBoilng interd
Employe $6k opdon uFns
Transfer b @ined edns on ecent of v# sOP lapd
Transk to sudue F€mium on 4@unt of dscld E$P

(3)

22

8' (a6ff)

eamings

hdoye ffiopuonqFne
TransEr b r&ind eminS m account of std &P laFdr

ReBs.ndsurylus

Employe 3hk

(EsoP)

1t,977

(1s1)

(0)
(43)

(.) kudds promlom rft amfrnt Keivd in uc6 of fdevd@of Se quity$ar6 is r*ognid in KUdE6 premium.lt@n F usd only in ecodance wh prcvisimof CmFniesAd,2013 for sfifid FrS6.
(b) Employ6 stck opdon EGru.! ftis rdaB to fit @dons granM by be Frcnt to ib employs udd an Employfr ffi opdons plan.

(c) Rcblnd smln$r Reblnd €mlngsarc he @fib hatbe Group has €md dlldaE ndof amqdatms.

of fu fudqn oFGdon,
(€) Sh.rc.pplledon mon.y tsndlng allohcnt! Shareamli@ton mnq Fding allffient rcpr*ats appllcalon monry celvd on account of emplq€ tuk optid $heme

(O RmdsuEmnt of d.find bn.nt d.E r Cmpris &aialgains and lffi and @m on dan asts (sdudru 
'nterd 

iftome).

TransEr

2tOt7

Rcbind
€mln9s

MdACM@B
Fms Rql$ato Numhfl 10r248W 4/'100022

50

ot d6fnd hn.fil
plant

(630)

accNfi of qerciw EsP

l1,ta6

(g) Etredva prdon of gainr on dedvatvB d6ignaH as 6sh flow hdg€ (not) | ne Gsh flow Hge @rue replegb he
hdg6. Such gainsorl6s wllh r6lasifidb CffdidaH sbEmntol Profitand Lo$ in be Fdd in Mich ft undedying Hgd

.(5)
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948
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as FnctalAnalytics Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31'2024

1. Corporate Information

Fractal Analytics Limited ('Fractal' or 'the Company' or 'the Parent') (Formerly known as Fractal
Analytics Private Limited) is a limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Comp6ny
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as 'the Group') is the leading provider of advanced
analytics that helps companies leverage data driven insights in taking considered decisions. The
analytics solution of Group helps companies to enhance profitability by powering their customer
management efforts with scientific decision making.

The registered office of the Parent Company is located at Level 7, Commez II, International Business
Park, Oberoi Garden City, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai, India, The Company
changed its name to Fractal Analytics Limited effective from May L6,2024.

2. Material accounting policies followed by the Group

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companie Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20151 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments), Employees Stock Option plan as per fair value of the option and Employee's net defined
benefit (asset) / liability at fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit
obligation..

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is the Company's
presentation and functional currency. All values are rounded off to nearest million, except when
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on June t7 ,2024.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and its associate as at and for the year ended March 31,2024.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. The Group combines the financial statements
of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses,

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated, Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment,

2.2 BusinssCombination
(i) The Group accounts for each business combination by applying the acquisition method. The

acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in
determining the acquisition date and
to another.

Central

ilorth
flerco

Ir'bsicfll

control is transferred:from
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3L,2fl24

(ii) Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through power over the
entity.

(iii) The Group measures goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at the fair value of the
consideration transferred less the net recognized amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities in case such a liability represents a present obligation
and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably) assumed. When the

fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration
transferred, a bargain purchase gain is recognized in the OCI and accumulated in equity as
capital reserue if there exisb clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classiflTing the business
combination as a bargain purchase,

(iv) Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by
the Company to the previous owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the
Company. Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration.
Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(v) Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition, If an obligation
to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as
equity, then it is not remeasured, and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise
subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(vi) Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as
finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional and consulting fees, are
expensed as incurred.

(vii) Non-controlling interest is measured at propoftionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets,

Any goodwill that arises on account of such business combination is tested annually for
impairment.

2.3 Loss of control
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it:

(i) Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary.

(ii) Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests.

(iii) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.

(iv) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

(v) Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit and loss.

MUMBAI.63



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as FractalAnalytics Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31'2024

(vi) Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed off the
related assets or liabilities.

2,4 Investment in associate

(i) An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but has no
control or joint control of those policies. Investmenb in associate is accounted for using the
equity method unless otherwise stated.

(ii) Under the equity method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised at
deemed cost. The carrying amount of the investment in associate is increased or decreased to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss after the date of acquisition, unless the share
purchase agreement specify otherwise. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Group. Unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in those
entities. Where unrealised losses are eliminated, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment.

(iii) Pursuant to change in ownership interest in associate, the Group has continued to apply equiW
method, The gain or loss on the change in ownership interest in an equity-accounted investee is
calculated as the difference between:

a the entity's ownership interest in the new assets received by the investee for the
subscription of the new shares ; and
the reduction in ownership interest in the previous carrying amount and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

a

2.5 Property, plant and equipment ('PPE')

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Such cost includes its purchase price including inward
freight, duties, taxes and all incidental expenses incurred to bring the asset to its preent location and
condition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress includes cost of PPE under development as at the Balance Sheet date and is
carried at cost, comprising of direct cost and directly attributable cost.

The carrying amount of PPE is eliminated from the consolidated financial statements, either on
disposal or when retired from active use. Losses/gains arising on derecognition of the PPE is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when it is
replaced or retired or discarded. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Consolidated
Statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

MU},IBAI.63



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3L,2024

Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. The
management basis its past experience has estimated the useful lives, which is at variance with the life
prescribed in Paft C of Schedule II to the Act and has accordingly, depreciated the assets over such
useful lives.

Useful life of assets considered are as below:

. The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

. Its ability and intention to use or sell the asset;

. The availaUlity of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
asseU and

o The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible assets and
probability of how the same will generate future economic benefits.

Subsequent expend itu re
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific assets to which it relates and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other
expenditure is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amoftization
Amoftization is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis

ible assets from the date that they are available for use.

Description of assets

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements
Computers and accessories

2,6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Useful life of assets

The intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises of the acquisition price, and any cost directly attributable and allocable on a
reasonable basis for making the asset ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets under development includes intellectual property under development as at the
balance sheet date. Product development costs are incurred on developing/upgrading the software
products to launch new service modules and functionality to provide an enhanced suite of services.
These development costs are capitalized and recognised as an intangible asset when the following
can be demonstrated:

10 years

MUMBAI.63
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3L,2024

Ihe estimated useful lives are as follows:

Description of assets
Computer Software

Client Relationships

Patent

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at the end
of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life are considered to modify the amoftisation
period and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Brand

Intangible assets are amoftised over their expected useful life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Developed Content

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Internally generated intellectual property

3

Useful life of assets (Years)

Consideration is given at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment of the carrying amount of the Groups' each class of the propefi, plant and equipment or
intangible asseb. If any indication exists, an asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value based on an appropriate
discount factor. Intangible asseb under development are tested for impairment annually.

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration transferred, together with the amount of non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, over the fair value of the Group's share of identifiable net assets
acquired. Goodwill is measured at cost les accumulated impairment losses. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.

The goodwill acquired in a business combination is, for the purpose of impairment testing, allocated
to cash- generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. They
are first used to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to CGU and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other asseb in the CGU on a pro rate basis. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. In respect of other assets for which impairment
loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each repofting date whether there is

any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed is there
has been a change in the estimates used the recoverable amount. Such a

rnade only to the extent that the not exceed the carrying a
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3L,2O2+

recognised, On disposal of a cash-generating unit to which goodwill is allocated, the goodwill

associated with the disposed cash-generating unit is included in the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit when determining the gain or loss on disposal.

2.8 Foreign Currency Translation

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is functional and
presentation currency of the Parent Company,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised using exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the

functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the repofting date and foreign exchange gain

or loss are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.

Group Companies
The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

a assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

a

On consolidation, exchange differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity (as

exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation).

2.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies peformance obligations under the terms of its
contracts, and control of the services is transferred to its customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Group expects to receive from its customers in exchange for those seruices. This
process involves identifying the customer contract, determining the performance obligations in the
contract, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction price to the distinct
performance obligations in the contract, and recognizing revenue when the peformance obligations
have been satisfied. A performance obligation is considered distinct from other obligations in a

contract when it:
(a) provides a benefit to the customer either on its own or together with other resources that are
readily available to the customer and;
(b) is separately identified in the contract. The G a peformance obligation satisfied

once it has transferred control of services to the
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Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised on output basis measured by efforts
expended.

Revenue related to fixed price retainerchip contracts is recognised based on time elapsed and is

recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of peformance.

In respect of other fixed-price contracb, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion

method ('POC method) with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the
peformance obligation.

Subscription income consist of fees from customers accessing Group's cloud based software solutions.
Revenues are generally recognized over the period when control of these services is transferred to
customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be entitled to in exchange for
those services. The Group's subscription arrangements are considered service contracts and the
customer does not have the right to take possession of the software.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is

unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue ("contract liability") is recognised when there are billings in excess of
revenues.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic peformance-based payments and / or
milestone based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and
requirements. The Group reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract,
basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new peformance obligation, or transaction
price of an existing obligation could undergo a change,

In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted
for.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group's contribution to Provident fund and Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined
contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be
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Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarlal galns and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset celllng and the return on
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur,

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme asseb, Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions
to the scheme.

The Group provides benefits such as gratuity and provident fund to its employees which are treated
as defined benefit plans.

Shoft-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the
service. These benefits include performance linked incentive and compensated absences in few
geographies which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

2.LL Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax'as repofted in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are not taxable or deductible.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liabiliW on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be availabb against which those
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of liabilities in a transaction that affects
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or paft of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis..

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, *cept
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in

which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

2.12 Leases

The Group as a lessee
The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii)the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and

(iii) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

The group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the
lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right -of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on wh
subsequently measured at cost less any accu , accumulated impairment losses, if
any and adjusted for any remeasurement of
using the straight -line method from the com

right-of-use asseb

it is located. The right -of-use assets is
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The group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right
of use asset if the group changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing activity in consolidated statement of cash flows.
Under Ind AS 116, it will result in increase in cash outflows in financing activities and increase in cash
inflows in operating activities.

The Group does not have any lease contracts wherein it acts as a lessor

2.13 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial assets

(i) Classification, recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive

income, or through profit and loss), and

b) those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and

whether the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Type of
instruments

Debt
instruments

Classification

Amoftized cost

Rationale for
classification

Assets that are
held for
collection of
contractual cash
flows where
those cash flows,
represent sod(,

Initial
measuremen
t
At fair value
plus

transaction
costs that are

Subsequent
measurement

Amoftized cost is

calculated using Effective
Interest Rate (EIR)

method, taking into
account interest income,
transaction cost ffi

\discount or premiury{ *(
l$tth 0

HiqN;A!,
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payments of
principal and
interest on
principal amount
outstanding are
measured at
amoftized cost.

Fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
(FVOCT)

of the financial
asset

Assets that are
held for
collection of
contractual cash
flows and for
selling the
financial assets,
where
contractual
terms give rise
on specified
dates to cash
flows that are
solely payments

of principal and
interest on
principal amount
outstanding, are
measured at
FVOO.

acquisition. EIR
amoftization is included in
flnance income, Any gain
or loss on derecognition of
the financial Instrument
measured at amortized
cost is recognised in
Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.

At fair value
plus

transaction
costs that are
directly
attributable to
the acquisition
of the financial
asset

Changes in carrying value
of such instruments are
recorded in OCI except for
impairment losses, interest
income (including
transaction cost and
discounts or premium on
amoftization) and foreign
exchange gain/loss which
is recognized in
Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss

Interest income,
transaction cost and
discount or premium on
acquisition are recognized
in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and
Loss (finance income)
using effective interest
rate method.

Fair value
through profit
or loss (FWPL)

in the period in W

Assets that
not meet
criteria
amotized
or FVOCI

On derecognition of the
financial assets measured
at FVOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously

recognized in OCI is
classified from Equity to
Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss in other
gain and loss head.

do
the
for

cost
are

measured at fair
value thro

*

*

At fair value

Transaction
costs of
financial
assets

Any gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is

subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or
loss and is not paft of a

hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss

.x,
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Equity
instruments

FVOCI

Statement of
Profit and Loss

The Group's
management
has made an
irrevocable
election at the
time of initial
recognition to
account for the
equity
investment (on
an instrument by
instrument
basis) at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income. This
election is not
permitted if the
equity
investment is

held for trading.
The classification
is made on initial
recognition and
is irrevocable.

anses.

Changes in fair value of
such assets are recorded
in Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss as other
gains/ (losses) in the
period in which it arises,

,{

Interest income from
these financial assets is
included in the finance
income.

At fair value
plus

transaction
costs that are
directly
attributable to
the acquisition
of the financial
asset

Changes in fair value of
such instruments are
recorded in OCI.

On disposal of such
instruments, no amount is
reclassified to
Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss

Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment
losses) on equity
investments measured at
FVOO are not repofted
separately from other
changes in fair value.

FVTPL

I
,L

When no such
election is made,
the equity
instruments are
measured at
FVTPL

Dividend income from
such instruments are
however recorded in
Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss unless the
dividend clearly represents
a recovery of paft of the
cost of the investment.

At fair value.

Transaction
costs of
financial
assets
expensed to
Consolidated

Changes in fair value of
such assets are recorded
Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and for those instruments that are not
subsequently measured at FWPL, they are recorded as plus/minus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Initial and subsequent measurement of Cash flow hedges:

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value exceeds the contract amount and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is les than the contract amount. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later
reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedge item affects profit and loss
upon settlement of transactions.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold,
expires, is terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. When
hedge accounting for cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in the
hedging reserve remains in equity until, for a hedge of a transaction resulting in the recognition of a
non-financial item, it is included in the non-financial item's cost on its initial recognition or, for other
cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods as the hedged
expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been
accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective
and strategy for undeftaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Group's risk management
objective and strategy for undeftaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the
effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes
in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial repofting periods for which they were designated.

(ii) Impairment

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.9., loans,
deposib, and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables
c) Contract assets

The Group follows 'simplified approach' for
receivables which do not contain a significant fi

of impairment loss allowance on trade
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The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each repofting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk ilposure, the Group determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each repofting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets:

A financial asset is derecognised only when

(a) The contractual terms to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the Group has
transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset in which either substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments:
Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Classification, recognition and measurement:

(a) Equitylnstruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

(b) Financialliabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value minus any transaction costs that are
attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at FWPL which are initially
measured at fair value.

Subsequent measu rement:

The financial liabilities are classified for subsequent measurement into following categories:

- at amoftized cost
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(i) Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

The Group is classifying the following under amortized cost;
- Borrowings from banks
- Borrowings from othem
- Trade payables

Amortized cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amoftization using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.

(ii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FWPL.

Financial liabilities at FWPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement, recognised Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability,

Derecognition:

A financial liability is removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheet when the obligation is discharged,
or is cancelled, or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liabiliW. The difference in the carrying amounts extinguished and consideration
paid is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.14 Fair value measurement:
The Group measures financial instruments such as, ceftain investments and derivative instruments, at
fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market pafticipants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market pafticipanb
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is

statements are categorised within the fair value h

disclosed in the consolidated financial
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Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Fufther information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

Note 2.13: Financial Instruments
Note 2.16: Share-based payment arrangements

2.15 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and

the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the repofting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage

of time is recognised as interest expense,

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefib to be derived by the
Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision

is established, the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract,

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past evenb, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non occurrence of one or more unceftain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent asseb are not recognised. However,
when the realisation of income is viftually ceftain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent
asset, and is recognised as an asset. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date,

2.16 Share-based payments:

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured at fair value at the date at which
are granted. The fair value of share awards is determined with the assistance of an external valuer
and the fair value at the grant date is expensed on a proportionate basis over the vesting period

based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. The estimate of the number of
awards likely to vest is reviewed at each balance sheet date up to the vesting date at which point the

a

a

a
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2.17 Segment repofting:

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions for which discrete financial intbrmation is

available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision
maker evaluates the Group's peformance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet comprises cash at bank and on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.19 Government grants:
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be

received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as reduction from expense on a systematic basis over the period of the related
costs,

2.20 Earnings per share:

The basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily conveftible instrument are
included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.
The diluted earnings per share ("DEPS") is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for
the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year, as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.21 Current / Non-current classification:

An asset is classified as current if:
(a) it is expected to be realised or sold or consumed in the Group's normal operating cycle;
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the repofting period; or
(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current if:
(a) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c) it is expected to be settled within twelve the reporting period; or
d) the Group has no unconditional right to

months after the repofting period,

MUMBAI.63
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as FractalAnalytics Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3L,2O?4

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Group's normal operating cycle is twelve months.

2.22 Slgnificant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions:

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, asseb and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes

that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various

other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the
estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

a. Useful lives of propefi, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Group reviews

the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amoftisation expense in future
periods.

b. Defined benefit plan: The cost of the defined benefit gratuity obligation is determined using

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may difter
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,

future salary increases and attrition rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

All assumptions are reviewed at each repofting date.
c. Allowancs for uncollected accounts receivable and advances: Trade receivables do not

carry interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts, Individual trade receivables are written off when management

deems them not collectable. Impairment is made on the expected credit loss model, which is the
present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets. The impairment
provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about the risk of default and expected loss

rates, Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as fonruard looking

estimates at the end of each repofting period.

d. Provisions and contingencies: The Group estimates the provisions that have present

obligations as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each repofting period and

are adj usted to reflect the current best estimates. The Grou p uses significant judgements to
assess contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are there is a possible obli
arising from past events, the existence of which by the occu

MUMBAI-63
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3\ 2024

present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be

made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

e. Share-based payments: The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees using Black-Scholes and binomial model to determine the fair value of the liability
incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant, This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield
and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value
for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

f. Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets: The Group uses judgements based on the
relevant rulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances which is
exercised while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the Group exercises ib
judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

g. Revenue recognition:
The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at
a point in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer
consumes benefits as seruices are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or
existence of enforceable right to payment for peformance to date and alternate use of such
product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of
delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contracts is recognised using percentage-of-completion method, The
Group estimates the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the
degree of the completion of the peformance obligation.

h. Leases: The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an

option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to e lease. The Group revises the lease

term if there is a change in the non-cancellable
The discount rate is generally based on the in

evaluated.
l,{Ul'{BAl'63
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(formerly known as Fractal Analyttcs Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 3L,2024

2.23 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year
ended March 3L,2024, MCA has not new standards or amendments to the existing
standards applicable to the Group,
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fracbl Analytics Priuate Linitd)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31,2024

(3) Properry, plant and equipment

Particulars
Computers and

accessories
Leasehold

improvements
Fumiture and

fixtures

(in Rupees million)

Vehicles Office equipment Total

1,550
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2023
Reclassification^
Additions
Disposals*
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of

834

t2
(1e)

77
(23)

5

392
(22o)

4
(3)

64

I
(0)

260
220

(1)

32

55
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2023
Reclassification^
Charge for the year

Disposals*
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of

232
196

51
(1)

3

36

5

(0)

577

202
(1e)

2

262
(23)

5

353
(1e6)

4
(3)

0

1,138

Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022
Additions*
Derecognition on account of loss of control of subsidiary
comDanv (Refer note 37)+
Disposalsx
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of

186

(33)

(12)

23

368
4

(0)

(0)

20

(1)

64
0

(0)

260693
182

(33)

(11)

3

I 1,386

As at 2023
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2022
Derecognition on account of loss of control of subsidiary
comDanv (Refer note 3n*
Charge for the year

Disposals*
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of

834 250

203

29

64

31

5

361

(18)

181

(e)

2

1 891

(18)

256
(10)

19

295

(0)

41
(0)

17

(1)

As at

^ Leasehold improvement is reclassified for one of the office premises from office equipment

Note : The Group does not hold any immovable properties.

(This space is intentionaily lefr blank)
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Priuate Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31,2024

Particulars Amount

Gross carrying amount
As at April 0L, 2023
Additions
Disposals

Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations 4
As at March 31, 2024 1,383
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01,2023
Charqe for the year

On disposals
Exchanqe differences on translatinq the financial statements of foreiqn operations

1,224
948

(7s3)

756
249

(7s0)
2

As at March 31,2024 217
Net carrvinq amount

Gross carrying amount
As at April 0L,2022 1,148
Additions 276
Disposals (218)
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations 18

As at March 31,2023 1'224
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01,2022 689
Charqe for the year 246
On disposals (187)
Exchange differences on translatinq the financial statements of foreiqn operations B

As at March 31,2023 756
468Net carryino amount as at March 31, 2023

Note:
1. The Right of use asset as per Ind 45-116 comprises of lease of oflice premises.
2. Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation reflects change in value of asset

adjusted for closing rate of local currency in respective geography.

3. The aggregate depreciation expense on Right-of-use assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expenses in

the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fradal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31,2024

(5) Goodwill

As at
March 31, 2024

(in Rupees million)

As at
March 31, 2023Particulars

Goodwill at the beginning of the year
Add: Exchange differences on translating the financial

3,475 3,26L

statements of foreiqn
Goodwill at the end of the Year 3,513 3,475

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to acquisitions are as follows:

Particurars As at As at

4i Consultinq Inc (Refer Note 35) 22L 2LB
Senseforth.ai Group 366 362
Asper.ai Group 123 L22
Analwics Vidhya Educon Private Limited 182 181

Neal Analytics Group (Refer Note 35) 2,343 2,314
Totaf 3,513 3,475

Cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested for impairment annually at each reporting date, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that unit. The Group estimates the value-in-use of
the cash generating units (CGUs) based on the future cash flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future
operating results and growth rate and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using
internal forecasts. The discount rates used for the CGUs represent the weighted average cost of capital based on the historical market returns of
comparable companies,

The goodwill amount for respective years (relating to different CGUs individually) has been evaluated based on the cash flow forecasts of the
related CGUs over a period of five years and the recoverable amounts of these CGUs exceeded their carrying amounts.

An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (operating margin, discount rates and long term average growth
rate), based on reasonable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGU would decrease below
its carrying amount as on date.

The estimated value-in-use of CGUs is based on the future cash flows using 3olo to 5% (March 3L,2023: 3olo to 5olo) Terminal groMh rate and
discount rate of 18 o/o to 30o/o (March 31, 2023 : I8o/o to 30olo).

The discount rate is based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) which represents the weighted average return attributable to all the
assets of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU).

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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NoE b Con.olid.ted fin.ncial statenenb a. .t dnd for vcar cndod M.rch 31, 2024

(6) Oth6r lntangible asE

PartkubE
Inbnally
g€neEted
Intelkual

Prcperty

Erand
D€veloped
Cont€nt

Conput€r
Softwar€ Cllent rclntionship Patent Tot l

amount
As at April 01, 2023

Additions
Exchanqe differencg on translating the financial statements of foreign

t07

4

981
119

9

927

12

4

1

30 102 2,15r
432
26

As at April 01, 2023

Charge for the year

Exchange differencg on translating the financial statements of foreign

65

42
1

165

93

3

666
170

5

48
6

l4
10

Glls €fiylng amount
As at April 01, 2022

Additions

Dersoqnition on account of 16 of control of subsidiary company
(Refer note 37)
Exchange differencg on translating the financial statements of foreign

56
48

885
23r

(183)

48

:"

68

30 102 1,936

2n
(183)

119

Accumuleted amortiaUon
As at April 01, 2022

Dersognition on account of loss of control of subsidiary company
fReJer nole 37)
Charge for the year
Prcvision for Impaiment 16
Exchange differencG on translating the financial statements of foreign

68

9313

3

505

157

84
28

632

2n
84
35

10

4
(108) (l0B)

4

Note 1 : Refer note 16 for details of charge/hypotication cr@ted aqainst intanqible as*ts.

Note 2 : The etimated amortistion of intanqible assets for the yeaF subsuent to March 31, 2024 is as follows :

Year ending 31 March in Rup€ l.lilllon

accordingly has provided for impaiment 16 of Rs 84 million.

(6.1) lnbnsible As* Und6r D.v€lopment (IAUD)

2025
2026

After 2026

Gl,6 errylnq amornt
As at April 01, 2023

Additions

368
318

670

299
toz

(231)
(87)
(76)

Gffi errying amount
As at April 01, 2022

Additions
L6s: Capitalistion
L6s : Provision for Impaiment in value of IAUD (Refer note below)
L6s : D€rffognition of assb on account of L6 of control of
subsidiary commny (Refer note 37)

As at Msrch 31, 2023 7

accordinqly has provided for imfEiment loss of Rs 4 million.

Koverable amount to be below ib @rryino amount and hence 10006 impaiment prcvisionino is E@nised amountjno to Rs 83 million.

Aq€ing of PFI€ctr ir prog6 (at glc v6lue)

As at l"larch 31, 2024 59 t3

922
321

10

4

t7t

B@kup of nEturc of qpcns which h.s ben @pltall.€d

PartlculaE sat

88
83

&Co
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Pafticulars

(7) Investments ( Non-current)

A. Investment in equity instruments of Associates accounted under the equity
method
Investments in unquoted equity instruments

Qure,ai Technoloqies Private Limited
250,000,000 (March 31, 2A23:250,000,000) equity shares of Rs 1 fully paid up
(Refer note 37)

Total carrying value

Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31,2024

As

4,479

As at
March 31. 2O24

B. Common stock
(Unquoted, measured at fair value throuqh profit and loss)
Commure, Inc.
(March 31, 2024 : 5,003 shares of common stock)
(March 31, 2023 : Nil shares of common stock)

C. Preferred stock
(Unquoted, measured at fair value through profit and loss)
Commure, Inc.
(March 31, 2024 ; 6,94L shares of series D preferred stock)
(March 31, 2023 : Nil shares of series D preferred stock)

Total (non-current)

D. Preferred stock
(Unquoted, measured at fair value through profit and loss)
RX.health, Inc.
(March 31, 2024 : Nil shares of series Seed-2 preferred stock)
(March 31, 2023 : 658,761 shares of series Seed-2 preferred stock)

D. Equity
(Unquoted, measured at amortised cost)
Qi-Cap Investments Private Limitedx
(March 31, 2024 : 132,567 shares of face value Rs 1 each
March 31, 2023 : Nil)

(7) Investments (Current)

(Measured at fair value through profit and loss)
Investment in liquid mutual funds units (unquoted)
Total other investments

4,259

4.259

(a) Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 9,793 7,397

Note 1 : During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Group has received common stock and series D preferred stock of Commure, Inc
in exchange of RX.health, Inc. series Seed-2 preferred stock on account of merger of RX.health, Inc. to Commure, Inc. Accordingly,
the investment is fair valued and gain of Rs 67 million is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

33

46

"lx

0

L2

o

*
\iesc\)
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ParUdlaE

(8) TEde rdEivables

Trcdeffilvabl&
- Unsesred, @nsidered gQod

- Unssured, qedlt impalred

- Unbilled receivablq - Unwured, considqed good

Sub Total
Allowancs for rypsled credit loss

CuE.nt trad€ l@lvrbl6

A5 at
Mardr 31, 2024

Ad at
Mardr 3L 202t

3,825
12

1,596
5,433

3,454
L2

1,ilg
5,O75

(100) (66)
s.333 s.oog

Atqlng ot Tmdo rcelvoble
A. rt urr.+r ?1. b?4

Parti@laE Cuffit but not due
6 months - 1y€r 1-2 y@E 2-3 yq6 Horc tftan 3 yaE Total

Trade rec€lvabbs
(l) Ljndlsputed Trade reivablG - @nsldered good

Lsr Allowances for qpected credlt l6s

3,230 28550 3,825

(1oo)
3.737

12

Palildlart Cuffit but not due 6 
5 mondrs - t year 1-2 y6r5 2-3 yea6 More than 3 yeais Total

(i) Undisputed Trade Keivables - @nsidered gaod 3,103
Trade

(9a) Cashandc6hequlvalents

Cash on hand t

Balincr with banks
In cunent accounts

Total cash and c6h eqqlvalents

(9b) Bank balqncs oth6rthan above
In fixed derosit account (lvith oriqinal maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months)

(LO) Cumnt loans
secured, conside€d good
Loan to directore (Refer note 29)

Total cufient loans

(11)
lkn-cu rrent frnancial aseb
Other bank deposlts

s{b total (A)

tlerivative asset - fomard contract
Security deposits

Sub total (B)

Total non-@rrcnt fr nanclal agsets

Curent flnanclal aseb
Derivative asst - foMard contract
Securlty deposlLs

Recelvablq from related parties (Refer note 29)+

Others advances

(12) other as€ets

l,t@-Curent assef
Prepald expenses

Employee advans
Total non-drrent assts

dtmnt eetc
Prepaid €xpenses (Refur note b€low)

Contract assets (Retur note 27)

Advancs to vendors and others
Balance with governrent authorities
Less : Provision for doubtful advances

Total current assets

2Bs 45 1l 4 3,454

o

2,132
8r2 1132

12

Lsi Allowanes for qpected credit loss -----l
3,4{rO

Trade re.elvables - lJnblllPd

Total ffi

812

66

980

7t66
7t

282 269
2re

Type of Borrower

Total 282 looo/o 2C9 r

and beneficial interest.

980

L73 267

-5
----------------

77
t47 r87
1m

_______________$ -

53
4
5
3

35t2

403
896
t4
8B

Note r preFEid expenses indudes Rs L2g million (l4arch 3i, 2023 iRs i 14 oFfer dnd ,s to be shared beM.een the Company and selling sharel"olders.

383

5s5

187
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Fractal Analytie Limited
(formerly known as Fmctal Analytt:G Pivate Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 311 2024

(13) Deferred tax as6ets/(liabiliues)

AE at As at

Deferred tax asts/(liabilities)
Busins losses/ unabsorbed deprtriation 378 368
koperty, plant & equlpment and lntanglble a$ets 59 29

Ma* to market gain on derivative forwards (17) 7

Rightd-use asets (226) (54)
Lease liabrlities 224 68

Others4 6l (19)

Total Deferrcd tax asts (net)
*Othe6 indude impact for ma* to ma*et gain/os on fait value of curent investnents and other Emporary diterenc#

Fair value of Asjate Company

Total Deferrcd tax llabllftl6

(a) Movements in defered tax asets/(liabilities)

(1,016) (1,016)

l!!161 (1,016)

479

(13)
(1 1)

0 - 5 years

From5-8yeaE
Beyond 8 yeaE

29 354 (1,016) (19) (617)
(Charged) / Credited
- to proflt or loss
- to other comprehensive income
- Exchange differencs on translating

the financial statements of fo.eign
operations

80

10

At March 31, 2024 (L7l 59 374 (1,0r6) (2) 61 (s37)

(Charged) / Credited
- to proflt or loss
- to other comprehensive income
- Exchange differencG on translating

the financial stabements of foreign

(1,011)

(1)

(d) Reconciliation of tax upense and the book profit omputed by applying income tax ratel

27

balance tax loss and deductible temperory differences of Rs 512 million (lvlarch 31, 2023 - Rs 390 mjllion).

(b) The tax losses of the Grcup wlll lapse ln subsequent years as follows:

As at
Mardr 31,2024

399

(16)

(1,016)

396

496

l4

27

As at
March

1,778
1 1q4

(c) Income tax expense

signlflcant estlmates ln relation to the Group's tax posiuon.

fncome tax expense is as follows:

At ADril Ol, 2OZ3 7

(2)

B3

(1 1)

B

(1s)(7)19t2

2023
131

961

L,753

Partlcula6

Profit and loss
(a) Curent Tax

- For the year
- Tdx adjustm€nt for earlier year

Tax Ete

Cu.rent year losses/utilisation of losses for which deferred tax asret
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose

Tax adjustment for earlier years

Impact of differenL tax rate

Share of loss af associate

State taxes

227
98

1R3\

189

34

98

Year ended
March 31, 2024

41

4

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year snded
March 31.2024

Particula6

174

5

242

/1{t5l

Year ended
March 31,2023

364

146

5

(rss)
73

l3



Fractal Analytics Limited
(foneily known 6 Fffita/ Analytis tuivate Linit&)

Notsto Consolldabd flnarcbl sbtements 6 at.nd for year sdcd Mardr 3t. 2024
(14) EqultyshaE@pital

Padldlars

Authoised
349,200,000 equity shar6 of face value Rs. 1 each
(March 31, 2023 : 349,200,000 equity shares of lace value Rs. I €dr) ^

38,100,000 Serles B 0.001 0/6 Compulsorlly convertllrle prefer€n@ shares oi fa@ value Rs,l each
(March 31, 2023 | 38,100,000 Seri6 B 0.001 Eo Compulsorily convertible preferene shars of fac wlue Rs. 1 each)

^The authorised share capibl of the Company has been increased vade board resolution date July 22,2022,

Itewd sharc 6plbl
lb,Jll,/uv €qulty shares 0l lacevalue Rs. I
(f4arch 31, 2023 : 26,189,854 equlty shar6 of Rs. 1 @ch)

4,523,604 Seris B 0.001 0/o Compulerily conveitible preference shar6 of face value Rs. 1 €ch
(lvarch 31, 2023 : 4,523,604 Seris B 0.001 0/o compulsority convertible preference shar6 of face valle Rs. 1 eadl)

Suhtqibed and fuily paid-up
25,652,931 equity shdres offace value Rs, I eadr fully paid up
(March 31, 2023 : 25,524,996 equity shars of Rs. 1 &ch fully paid up)

4,523,604 Series B 0.001 y0 Compul$riv convqtible pr€4erence shaE of face value R9. I eadr
(March 31, 2023 : 4,523,504 Serles B 0.001 0/6 Compulsorlly converdble preference shar6 of face value Rs. r fully paid up)

SubwiEd but not firily paid-up
664,B58 equity share of hce value Rs. I (Rs 0.5 paid up)*
(March 31, 2023 | 664,858 equlty share of fa@ wlue Rs, 1 (Rs 0.5 pald up) )

(a) Reconciliatlotr of sha$ outstanding attJle beginning rnd at the end ofthe year

Paaticulars

Equity eharc
At the commen@ment of the year
Add :- Shares issued during the year under
- mployee stock optlon plan (Refer note (i) below)
- Private placement of shares (Refer note (ii) below)

At the ffd of the year
*Amount less than Rs 1 million

(i) Duringtheyearl2Z935 shares(|v1arch31,2023:232,856shar6)wereissledundermployeestockoptionDlanatvar:ousorrce(Refernote33).
(ii) During the yea. Nil shares (March 31, 2023 | 9400 shales) were assued on a private placement basis.

fnsbuments enarely egulty ln natura - Serl6 I 0,001, ctb Compultorily converdble praferen@ sharas
At the commen@ment of the year

Issued durinq the year
45,23,604

At the €nd of the year

As at
March 31, 2024

Numb€r of shar6 Amount

As at
March 31, 2023

Number of shares Amrnt

2.61.89,B54

1,27,935

/in Pr'^ae milli^nl

As at
Mrrch 31,2024

As at
Marth 31.202t

349

38

349

3B

387-

5

31

262b

3W

1t

26

5

31 31

0

oo
31

45,23,604 s

5

2626

45,23,504 s 45,23,604

(b) Particulars gfshareholders holding morc than 5olo shares ofa class of shares

at
I'larch 31, 2023

ParudlaE

2,59,47,sgB

2,32,8s6

o

31

o/o of total

Mardr 31., 2024

Co

i.

shares in
tha dK

J{umber of
shares

oYo ot total
shars in
tfie da$

Nqmber of
shaffi

(a) Equity sharcs of Rs. ! each ftrlly paid-up held by
Quinaq Bidco Limited 22.57o/o 59,39,620 22.68ok 59,39,620
TPG Fett Holdings Pte Limibed 2A39o 74,72,423 28.08% 73,53,a14
Gulu Mirchandani (on behaf of GLM Family Trust) 20.13oh 52,96,556
Gita l'4irchandili 0.38% 1,00,000 11.96% 31,31,260
Gulu Nllrdlandanl 0.389o r,00,000 9.03o/o 23,65,296
Pranay Agravral 6.44% t6,96,174 6.60% 17,27,A12

Sril€nth Velamakannix 5.80% 15,27,378 5.83% 15,27,378
chetana Kumar 5.0406 13,25,431 5.150/6 13,49,151
(b) Seris B 0.001 Vo Compulsrily Convertibl€ Pref€rene Shares of Re 1 each fully paid-up h€ld by
Quinaq Eidco Limited 73.18ok 33,37,s0s 73.78o/o 33,37,505

TPG Fett Holdings Pte L[nited 26.220A 11,86,099 26.220/o 1r,86,099
* includs 664,858 partly paid up shares issued on private pla@rent basis
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analtti$ tuivate Linited)

I{ots to Consolldabd flnaNhlsbtemant6 € atand fory@r sdcd Marcfi 3t 2024
(c) Rightr, prefeen6 and E3trictiffs attadred to equity 3haE

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(d) Rlghts, prEfeFn€ and restrictlqs attached to Seris B 0.0010.6 Compulsorily Convertibl€ Preferen@ Shas (CCPS)

approval qf $e
distribution ofdll

Seris B 0.001% Compulsrily Convertible prefertrce shars: All outstanding CCPS shall be converted based on the then-apdicble CCPS ConveEion Pri@ on the eadier of :

(i) 1 (one) 9usrn65 Day of the qpiry of 5 (nve) years frcm the Oosing Date;, as applraHe; or

directed winding-up process

(iii) 1 (one) Business Day prior to the date of cssunrmation of the sle ofany Struriti€ by the tnvstor to a third party in accordance with the tenm ofthe Shareholders agrement

per Equity Share dividend prorated to the Assumed Equity Perentage.

has betr provided for in full.

Nobe - Refer (a) and (d) for conversid of C@S

(e) shar6 rqeded for isu€d under optioN

Particula6 March 31,2021 --t,3[11][l[]!--

Eqrt zs--------JIEId6-

(f) Th€re were no shares allotted puFuant io contract without payment being rreived in @sh or as fully paid up by way of bonus shars or any shars bought back.

(9) No dividend is dedared by the Company during the yeaE ended lrlarch 31, 2024 and l"larch 31, 2023.

lin Fr'^apc milli^n\

Parddlarr

(1s) Other equity

Securitis premium

Employe st@k option @rve
Remeasurement of defi ned b€nefit plans

Effedive portion of garns on of derNahs dGignated as csh now hedge (net)
Share application money pending allotment
Exchange differencG on translating the finan(ial statements of a foreign operation
Retained drnings
Total other equlty

Note : For movement dlring the year, refer Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

12/10a
2,880
(1121

22
167

11,977

2,0t7
(127)

166
(1,071) (616)

14,026 13,400

(This spd(e is intentionally left blank)
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Fracta I Analytics Limited
(fornsly known as Fnctal Atalytis tuivate Limited)

t{otGs to Consolldated ffnamlal stat€ment6 6 at and tor ter sdad Mardr 31, 2024

(16) g6o*;no"

Iton<utrent bomnings
(at anortised ffit)
s€cured
- Tem loan (Refer note (a) below)

Le$ I Arrangement fs
Le$ ; Current maturitis of long te.m debt

Gffint bNowingg
S€cured
- Cutrent mabr.itis of long tem debt - Term loan (Refer note (a) below)

Totalcunent brDwingt
]{ote :

(l) Total out5tandlng du6 of mlcro enterprlses and small enterpriss
(ii) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than rri(ro enterpriss and small enterprises

2,623 Tem SOFR Five yeaE ending
("sdured Overniqht q Decembtr 21,

Financing Rate") 2026
(Cap at 106) + 6010

35
-s

566
512 57L

Ar at As at
Mardr 31, 2023Marcft 3r., 2024

2-3 ysE Morc tfian 3 y€rs Total

10

53

2.623
(122)

3,416
(160)

- (35)
2,s01 3,22L

(a) The Group has avalled forelgn cunency floatlng intergt tem loan fmm financlal lnstltuuons as per term sheet dated Deffiber 21, 2021 amountlng to USD 42 mllllon,

Term loans 2,523 Group is to make Permltted and other
bullet repayment for the InvstmenE psmitted under the Loan

oubtandingprincipal D@ments
amount at the end of the

facility tenor with Nt
prepayrent penalty

2.623 2.623

collater.l r

subsidiary abroad, i.e., Fractal Analytics Inc., an entity qganised under the laws of United Stat€s of America
(b) 65% share Pledge of Fractal UK Prlvate Llmlted an entlty organlsd under tlre laws of United Kingdom.
(c) hypoth(atlon/ charge over all lntell€ctual property owned by the Group from lndla or Unlted Stats of AmslG ,

Gua€ntor:
The above borrowing is backed by the guarante given by Fradd Analyti6 Private Limited, Cuddle Inc USA, Neal Analytics LLC and Final Mile Consulting LLC. (Retur note 35)

(u) Tndc pay.blcs

Tnde payabl$
- Total outstanding dues of micrc enterprise and small enlerpriss (Refer below note)
- Total outstanding dues of creditorg oths than micro €nterpriss and small ente,?rises

- Related parties+ (Refer note 29)
- Others

Total trade payables
*Amount less than Rs I million

Partidla.s

Du€ of mlcre and sfiall €nterprlses
Under the lVi@, Small and l.ledium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('l"lsl'1ED') which came into force from 2 October 2006,

cetain disclo$rs are required related to lt4slvE. On the basis of the information and records available with the Group, following are

the details of dus:
- the principal amount and the interGt due thereon rmaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of eadr d(ounting y@r;

- the ament of intergt paid by the buytr in terms of section 16 of the f.4icro, Small and l.ledium Ent€rpris6 Devdopment Act,
2006, alonq with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day durjng each accountinq year;

- $e amdnt of lnterst due and payade for $e period of dday h maklng payment but wlthout adding the lntrct spedned under
th€ Mlqo, Small and Medium Enterprlss Develapment Act,2006;

- fie amant of interst accrued and maining unpaid at the end of edh a@unting year; and

- the amant of further interest remaining due and payable even ir the suGeding years, until such dat€ when the interest dus
above are actually pald to the small st€rprls€, for the purpGe of disallowance of a deductlble expendlfure under secton 23 ofthe
Micro, Small and lledlum Enterprlses DeveloFrent Act, 2006.

Ageing of Tnde payabl€s
As at lt{ardr 31, 2024

PartiillaB Not due
Outstanding for followlng periods from due date of payment

LesE than 1 year 1-2 y€E

40

1

47r

4i

B

32
(iii) Disputed dues of crediioG other than micro enterprjs€s and small enterp.ises - - 7 - 7

Total440197'7O
Accrued erpens6 442

19

st2

PartiolaE

(i) Total outstanding dus of miGo enterpdss and small enterpriss
(ii) Total outstanding dues of credito6 other than micro enttrpris and small enterprises

Outstnding fqfollowing p€1iods frcm due date of payment

Less tian 1 ysr 1-2 y€aF

4
101

I
123

More than 3 t€ars Total

224

expens6

Not due
2-3 yqF

MUMBAI-63
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(fmerlf krcwn 6 Fadal Analttig Pivate Linitd)

Not6 to Consolldatsd flnamlal sbt mlnts I at.nd for yer sdcd Marcfi 3t 2024

PsrdelaF

(18) Odrer financial liabilitis

Non-srrent fi naEial liabilities
Employee related obligation

Total non-errent finafti8l liabilitiF

Curent tlnancial liabiliti6
Employ€ related obllgauon

Capitdl creditnrs
DeriEuve llabilify - ioruard conbact
Deferred considmbon payable

Inter6t acqued and due

Total curent tlmnclal llabilltis

(19) Other llabilitlg

ancnt liauliti$
Un€med rdenue (Refer note 27)
Advance from customer
Statutory dues payable**

O$er payablG
Total cur€nt llabllltlc

**lncludes td deducted at eurs, provident tund payable, profsionai taxs

(20) Prevlslorc

Ihn<lrrcnt prcuisiong
Gratuity (Reftr note 28)

Total nof, -drBnt pbvigions

arrent pronltioB
Gratuity (Refs note 28)

Conpensated absnes (Refer note 28)

Other prcvisions (Refur note 26.a)
Totdl cun€nt prcvlslons

Movement of other prcvlslons
opening balance

Provision seated during the y@r

Provision reveBed/utilised during the year

Closing balance

310 140
31(t L&

2,135
3ts

Ar at As at
titrrdr 31, 2024 Mardr 31, 2023

a5 ao

4L
2,454 1,866

1,031 868
40 12

317 348
14

1,408 1,242

187 1t8
187 1t8

21
61 29
85 80

148 11o

80
5

(This space is intehtionally left blank)

*

24
t6

*

c

1,825

Westefli

and
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytis Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year €nded March 31, 2024

Particulars

(21) Revenue frcm operations

Sale of seruices (Refer note 27)

Total Revenue from operations

(22) Other income

Interest on :

- bank deposils
- Loan to directors (Refer note 29)
- unwinding of security deposits given

Fair value gain on derivative forward mntracts
Fair valuation gain of financial instruments
Gain on redemption/sale of flnancial instruments

Foreign exchange loss / (gain), net
Miscellaneous income

Total other income

Interest on :

- bonowings
- lease liabilities (Refer note 30)
- otheB
Other borrowing cost*
Total flnance costs
*Amount less than Rs 1 million

(25) Depr€ciation and amortisation €xpense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)
Depreciation on right of use assets (Refer note 4)

Amortisation on intangible assets (Refer note 6)
Total depreclatlon and amortlsatlon expenge

(26)

2t,963 19,854

2'..963 19,854

456 s83

445 453

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(in Rupees million)

Year ended
March 31, 2023

2Q

10

12

50

122

163

65

74

4

8

11

59

96

306

89

(23) Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus *

Contribution to provident funds (Refer note 28)

Gratuity (Refer note 28)

Staff welfare expense

Total employee benefits expense t7,37O 16,085

*During the year ended N4arch 31, 2024, the Group received government grants amountinq to Rs 76 million (Mardl 31, 2023: Rs Nil million) from
government of United Kingdom on compliance of several employment-related conditions and accordingly, accounted as a credit to employee
benefits expense.

(24) Finance costs

15,16,398 26r
r82
148

494

229
189

554

361

47

43

0

262
249

321

3s8

45

30

20

Other expenses
Outsourced manpower cost
Legal and professional fees

Software maintenance charges

Travelling and conveyance

Communication charges

Recruitsnent expenses

Advertising and publicity expense

Repairs and maintenance - Computers and others
Facility management expens€s

Rent, rates and taxes (Refer note a below)

Insurance

Subcontracting expense

Fair value loss on derivative and forward mntracts
Provision for doubtful advances

Bad debls
Allowances for expected credit loss

MembeBhip and subscription charges

Corporate social responsibility (Refer note 40)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total other upens€s

598

560

432

327

269

169

234

78

38

169

45

56

t52

44

64
6

95

832

MUI..TBAI.63

78L

l,lrh

llorlll
Nescrr

600

463

435

346

323

193

63

41

94

45

30

I
1

34

57

7

t22
&Co

256
246

279

Csnt'?t B

* *

2,896 3,346



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerlv known as Fnctal Analytis Prlvate Limited)

Not€s to Consolidat€d financial sbtements as at and for year ended March 31, 2024

(26) Other expens€s (continu€d)

a, During the previous year ended Mardl 31, 2023 the Company and all the Directors of tie Company has received show cause notice as to why

prosecution proceedings under the Income tax Act 1961 (Act) should not be initiated against them for delay ln deposit of tax deducted at source

(TDS') of Rs 405 million during Fy 2019-20 (albeit the deposit of TDS was made with due interest for the delay wiulout any intimation from the

tax authorlties). Detailed justificltion was provlded against the said SCN to establlsh a reasonable cause for the delay in deposlt of TDS. However,

w$out acceptance/admisslon ot guilt ot oftence under the provldons of the Act and to avold lltlgaton, the Company rn rts crpacity and and on

behalf of all dkectors, on December Z 2022 has filed an application for compounding of offence before the tax department.

The total amount of Rs 85 mllllon ls the estlmated compounding fee for the Company and Directors, computed basis compounding guidelines

under the Income-tax Act, 1961 which ls disclosed under Rent. rates and taxes for Rs 5 mlllion in the current year (March 31, 2023 Rs 80 Mllllon).

Particulars Year ended
March 31,2024

(26.1) Exeeptional Items
Impairment ln value of assets (Refer note 6 and 6,1)
Remeasurement of retained interest in associate (Refer note 37)

Gain on loss of control of subsidiary (Refer note 37)

(This space is intg1tionally left blank)

*

i, 
L-71

' (s,410)

55 (5.2391

Year ended
March 31, 2023

*

o
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fradal Analyttcs Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3'',2024

(27) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group disaggregates revenue fiom contracts with customers by nature of seryices.

Revenue disaqqreqation by nature of services is as follows:

Palticulars
Year ended

March 31, 2023

income

While disclosing the aggregate amount of fansaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) pedormance

obligations, along with the broad time range for the expected time to recognise those revenues, the Group has applied the practical expedient in
Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Group has not disclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or paftially satisfied) performance
obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognized corresponds to the value transferred to customer typically involving time and
material, outcome based and event bas€d contracts,

The Group has applied practical expedient as per paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about remaining performance
obligatlons that have original expected duration of one year or less.

Contract Balances

at the beginning of the year

nce at year

Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contracted price is as follows:

Contracted price

Reductions towards variable consideration components

Revenue
Note : Variable consideration includes volume discount / service credit to customers,

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Rq6

555

*q6

Year ended
March 31, 2024

2t,963

Year ended
March 31,2()23

Particulars

858

Year ended
March 31,2023

(2s8)

20,056

(202)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Pafticularc

2t,721

Derecognition on account of change in relationship from subsidiary to associate
Revenue recognized that was included in the unearned balance at the beginning of the year
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognized as revenue during the year

Analytical services

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance-based payments and / or milestone based progress payments. Invoices
are payable within conhactually agreed credit period.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

19,691

163

statements of

6,417

(6,084)

d

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Pafticulars

Ealance at the beginning of the year

Derecognition on account of change in relationship from subsjdiary to associate

Revenue recognized during the year

Invoices raised during the year

Changes in unearned revenue are as follows:

Chanqes in contract assets are as follows:

Year ended
March3'-,2024

524

( 116)

3,650

(3,s38)

E4

Year ended
March 3L,2023

o

Cenval

*

868

(410)

s62
11

Westetn

and

l,{uN$A1-63

1,031

,o

22,22t

836
(146)
(422)

546

54

*



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractdl Analytics Private Limited)

Not€s to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 37,2024

(28) Employee ben€fits

The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined contribution plan and defined benefit plans in India.

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Group entities in India have a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to Employee's provident fund
organisation which is the provident fund authority in hdia for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund
administered by the Government of India. The obligation of $e Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has neither further contractual nor any
constructive obligation.

(in Rup€e6 million)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2023

229

(b) Compensated absences
Liability under Compensated absences pertains to leave balances in subsidiary company and is disclosed under current provisions.

(c) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity:
The Group entities in India provide for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in

continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of
service- The oratuitv Dlan is a funded olan with resDect to Parent Comoanv.

Key assumptions used fol actuarial valuation by an Independent actuary under the Projected Unit Credit Method are as undel:

23.004/o

5.00o/o

2.004/o

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate -1000/o

Notes:

Year ended
March 31,2O24

1. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities for the estimated term of the obligations.

2. Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.
3. Assumpbons regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the statistics published by the Llfe Insurance Corporation of India.

a. The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and movements in the net ddined benefit obligation (DBO) ar€ as follows :

Particulars

March 31,2023

tlnfunded Plan
40

(10)

*The Group has invested the amounts in pension fund with Life

3

1J

(3)

0
1

6

1

2-96

2T

t27

(33)

(1s)

(24)
11

383

2

8
(20)
(0)

(0)

(s)
0

32,#Rr

March 31, 2024

10.000/o

6.00o/o

2.Qle/o
Indian Assured Lives
Moftality (2012-14)

Ultimate -100%

7,I5o/o

9.00%

182

March 31, 2023

7.500/o

10.00o/o

€hange in the present value of obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of th€ year
Derecognition of liability on account of change of relationship of
subsidiary entity to associate entity (Refer note 37)

Interest cost
Current service cost
Transfer in/(out)
Benefits paid^
Remeasurement recoganised in other comprehensive
income due to
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions^

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes^
Actuarial loss arising on account of demographical assumptions^

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

March 31, 2024

Funded Planx
uu_u

29

r73
70

(33)

(26)

Employer's contribution to provident fund

Included in 'Contribution to provident funds' expense (Refer Note 23)

Discount rate
Future salary increases

Attrition rate
Based on Completed years of service

Up to 2 years

3 - 4 years

Above 4 years

Mortality Rate

unfund€d Plan

^Amount less than Rs 1 million

MUMBAI.63
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as FradalAnalytics PrtvaE Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended llarch 3'.,2024

b. The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and movements in the fair value of plan assets over the year are as follows :

Change in the fair value of plan assets March 31, 2023

assets at the end of the

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

311
(1)

23

63

395

2t4
(2)

15

84

311

Current service cost
Interest cost (net)

Total expense recognized in the €onsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
- Total expense recognized for obligation with funded plan
- Total expense recognized for obligation with unfunded plan

181

8 8

March 31,2024

Remeasurements during the year due to
Changes in financial assumptions

Changes in demographic assumptions

Experience adjusBnents

Expected return on plan assets

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the year
- Total expense /(income) recognized for obligation with funded plan
- Total expense/ (income) recognized for obligation with unfunded plan

148
133

15

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

million

l,larch 31, 2024

March 31r 2024

c' The sensitivitv of siqnificant assumDtions used for valuation ofdefined benefit obliqation is as follows i

March 31r 2023

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice it is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change

(26)

1

1

1

(23)
(18)

(s)

(3ss)

521

476

(380)

(3e3)

43r

Discount rate +100 basis points

Discount rate -100 basis poinG

Salary increase rate +100 basis points

Salary increase rate -100 basis poinb
Athition Rate +50%

Attrition Rate -50%

(484)

7r0
654

(soo)

(s66)

602

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected returns on plan assets

Interest on plan assets
cnntrihutions mada by the Company

Fair value of

430
(31r)

119
72

47

Impact on percentage point increase / decrease in

Reconciliation of pr€sent value of defined ben€fit obligation and the fair value

Present value of funded obligation at the end of $e year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period

Net liability in Consolidated Ealances Sheet
- liability of funded plan
- liability of unfunded plan

of assets

Amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

l.lalch 31, 2023

585
(3e6)

189
757

32

189
179

10

140

MU\,I8AI.63

compared to previous period.

(12)

12

,-,0,

(24)
(28)
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31,2024

d. Maturity profile of defined bene{it obligation :

Particulars

Expected cash flows for following year March 31,2024

payments in next

f, Funding arrangementsand Funding Policy
The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year,the insurance company carries out a
funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by
the Company.

g. Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period : The Group's best estimate of contribuUon during the next year is Rs 157 Millions.

h, Interest rate tisk
The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the parent Company and hence it under writes all tie risk pertaining to the plan. In particular,
this exposes the parent Company to the actual risk such as adverse salary growth, changes in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying
plan assets. This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to tie employees in fufure, Since the benefits are lumpsum in nature, the
plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

(This space is intentionally left blank)

As at March 31,
2024

March 31, 2023

9

62

108

2,782

20 Years

6

43

82

2,279

e. Expect€d future benefit payments on undiscounted basis

Expected

1 year

Year2-5years
6 - 10 years

More than 10 years

As at March 31/
2023

21 Years

lvIUl'IBAI'63



Sr. No

Quinag Bidco Limited

TPG Fett Holdings Pte, Limited

Qure.ai Ttrhnologis Private Limited

Qure Technologies lnc./ USA (Subsidiary of Qure.ai Ttrhnologi€s Private Limited)

Qure.ti Ttrhnologis Limited, UK (Subsidiary of Qure.ai T(hnologies Inc.)

Fractal Analytics Limited
(fomerly known as Fmctal Analyths Private Limited)

Nots to Conslldated flnanclal statements as at and for year ended Mardr 31, 2024

(29) Related party transactions

(a) Related parHes

(b) KeY manaqerlal personnel

Padi@lars

3

4

1

2

3

4

5

6
7
I
9

10

11

1)

Whdetime Director

Non- Executive Dirtrtor
Non- Executive Dirtrtor
Additional Director

Non- Executive Di@tor
Non- Executive Dirrctor
Non- Executive Dirtrtor
Non- Executive Dimtor
Non- Executive Director

Independent Director
Independent Director
Company Secretary

(c) Enterprise in which Director is itrt€rested

(d) Transactions and balances

March 31,2023

14r. Srikanth Velamakanni^
Mr. Pranay Agrawal^
l4r, Gulu Mirchandani (upto April 26, 2024)

l"lr. Sasha Gulu Mirchandani (w.e.f. April 26, 2024)

Mr, Rohan Haldea

Mr. Anurag Sud

Mr. Gavin Patterson^
Mr. Puneet Bhatia

Mr. Vivek Mohan

l'ls. Karen Ann Tetrell**
1"1s. N@lam Dhawanxt
lvls, Somya Agarual^

B

@nsulting seruiG
Tario Patners LLP

Expenss incurred on behalfof associate company
Qure Technologies lnc.*

**The sittlng fees paid to independent
rspectively.

Rs7 for he year ended March 31, 2024 and Plarch 31, 2023

^Total employee stock option expense for the yeare ended llarch 31, 2024 and llarch 31, 2023 includes a charge of Rs 106 million and
Rs 143 million, respectively, towards key mandgement personnel.

than Rs 1 million

Refer note 12 with respect to initial public offer expenses.

Key managerial personnel who are under the employmcnt of the Parent Company are recognized as per Ind AS
19 -'Employee Benefits'in the financial statements, As lhese employee beneFits are
not included above. Gratuitv has been comouted For the entitv as a whole and henae

valuation, the sanre is

The tranections with related parties are made on terms eqLrivalent to those that
loan to diredor) at the year-end are unsecured and settlemet)t occurs in cash.

57

61

10

10

54

62

10

8

8

10

B

6

282

lk: r;r

0rti'

Company having
significant influ€nce
Company having

siqnifiGnt inlluene
Asrcciate Company

Subsidiary of Asociate
Company
Subsidiary of Associate

Company

Transachbns

Nature

Managerial remuneration
Srikantfi Velamakanni

Pranay Agrawal

Somya AqaNal

Interest lncome
Pranay Agrawal

Loan given
Pranay Agrawal

Sr, No

4 Repayment of loan
Pranay Agrawal

Name of the party

5r. No

Loans lncludlng lnterest accrued
Pranay Agrawal

2 Other receivables
Qure Ttrhnologies Inc.'r

March 31,2024

amounting to Rs 16

3

BalancesSr. No

TradG payablcs (Including provision)

Qure.ai T(hnoloqies Private Limited

*Amount

\,{U\{BAI-63
balances (except

March 31, 2024

251

March 31,2023

\'/"tslc,tl

269

5

I



Fractal Analytics Limited
(former/y known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2024

(30) Leases

Group as lessee
The Group entities have entered into cancellable leasing arrangement in respect of office premises for a period of 3-5 years which are renewable
on mutual consent.

As at
Mrr.h ?l - 2ll24

Patticulars of Lease Liabilities

(ii) The contractual maturiUes of Lease liabilities are as under on undascounted basis:

after five

(iii) Lease payments recognised for short term leases in Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss during the year

(iv) Following amounts are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

1.131

As at
Mrr.h ?t - tnt4

As at
Mer.h ?l ?O24

317

1,084

33

For the year ended
March 31,2023

516

885

4I
(2)
4

(313)

Particularc

use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
to low value

The Group does not face a significant liquidity riskwith regard to its lease liabilites as the current assets are sufficient to meet Sre obligations related to lease
liabilities as and when they tull due.

term leases

(This space is intentionally left blank)

913

218

249
4T

80

246
45

Non-current

(i) Movement in Lease Liabilities:

Particulars

opening Balance

Add: Additions on account of new leases

Add: Finance cost accrued during the year
Less: Termination/cancellation
Add: Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations
Less:

As at

of Lease Liabilities

Payable within one year

Payable later than one year and not later than five years

243

Depreciation on

Particulars

1.131

\{UMBAI.63

543
277

45
(33)

I

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

313
268



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Anawics Private Linited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2024

(31) Fair value measurement

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation offair value - those include cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,

trade receivables, other financial assets ,trade payables and other financial liabilities.

Fair value thlough plofit and loss (FVTPL) Level March 31, 2024 Mrrch 31, 2023
Assets

Investments (Refer note a below)
Investments (Refer note b below)
Derivative asset - Forward contract receivable

Total assets 4,56L 2,918
Liabilities

Derivative liability - Forward contract payable 24

Total liabilities 24

Assets
Derivative asset - Forward contract receivable 43

Total assets 43

Assets

2

3

2

4,455
79

27

2

2

Investments*
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances

Loans

Other financial assets

Total assets

0
5,333

812
75

282
159

6,661

5,009
2,t32

151

269
t87

Liabilities
Borrowings 2,50I
Trade payables 512

256
57r
982

3,

ncial liabilities
Total liabilities 5,777 5,809

*denotes amount less than Rs 1 million

Note: Carrying amounts ofcash and cash equivalents, bank balances, loans, trade receivables, borrowings and trade
payables as at March 3I, 2024 and March 31, 2023 approximate the fair value.

(a) Valuation technique : Fair value of current investments is considered based on the valuation quotes received from mutual
fund house for investmenk and bankers for derivative instruments which are considered under level 2.

(b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement of the investment categorised at level 3:
m

Particulars
March 2023

12

Exchange differences on translating the financial

Balance 79 L2

Sensitivity of level 3 financial instrument's fair value to changes in significant unobservable inputs used in their fair

Particulars
As at As at

March 31, 2024
Investment in Commure Inc common stocl(preferred stock
- Increase by 5%

Valuation is determined basis transaction price determined pursuant to merger

Note:

:,

67

As at
March 31, 2024

4

4

2,906
t2

At fair value through profit and loss
Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Sale/reduction during the year

Fair valuation gain of financial instruments (refer note 22)

7,748

MUMBAI-63

As at

There are no transfers between any of these levels during the current and

March 31, 2023



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year endeJ March 3L,2024

(32) Financial risk management framework

The Parent Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework, Additionally, the Board for each Group entity is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk
management policies. The Board holds regular meetings on its activities,

The Group's risk management policies are established to identifo and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and each Company's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, 6n6
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers,
Financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, investments, cash and cash
equivalents and other balances with banks. None of the financial instrumentg of the Company result in material concentration of credit
risk.

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks is limited as the Group generally invest in deposits with banks
with high credit ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies, accordingly the Group considers that the related credit risk is low,

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default
is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables.

The Group's exposure to customers is diversified and two customer contribute to more than 100/o of outstanding trade receivables
(including unbilled receivables) as at lvlarch 31. 2024 (one customer as at March 3L,2023).

The movement in the allowance for expected credit loss in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

March 3

Loans and other financial assets
Loans and other financial assets mainly consists of security deposits and loan to related party, The security deposits penains to rent
deposits given to lessors, The Company does not expect any losses from non performance by these parties. Loans to related party is
secured, accordingly the Group considers that the related credit risk is low.

Investments
Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units with high credit ratings assigned by external credit rating
agencies, accordingly the Group considers thatthe related credit risk is low.

Derivatives
The derivatives are entered into with banks with good credit ratinqs.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, The Group has access to undrawn revolving credit hcility at the
year ended March 31, 2024 amounting to USD lB million (USD 18 million at
the working capital ne€ds as and when required.

3L,2023) which could be used for

2023March 31,2024
22

44

Balance at the beginning of the year

Movement during the year

Balance at the end of the

66

34
100

MUMBAI-63
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analfics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3L,2024

(32) Financial risk management framework (continued)
Maturities of financial liabilities

The below table analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities. The amounts
disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2,4s4

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, is as follows:

As at March 31-,2024

11

l7

EUR

0

512

3t7

90

17

Carrying amount
Undiscounted amounts

(c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - that will affect the
Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily
related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of the investments. Thus, the exposure to market risk is a
function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency.

571
1,982

516

3,256

1 - 2 year6<12months

(i) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on account of foreign currency transactions induding recognized assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the company's functional currency. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an

acceptable level.

Exposure to currency risk

512
2,764
1,131

2,slt

Particulars

March 31, 2024
Non derivative financial instruments

Trade payables

0ther financial liabilities

Lease liabilities
Borrowings

March 31, 2023
Non derivative financial instruments

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Lease liabilities
Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments
Other financial liabilities - forward contract

More than 2

2,623
807

310

1"

140

107

571
r,842

313

35

24

s.929

24

Pafticulars

Financial assets
Trade receivables

Net o(posure to foreign currency (assets)

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Net exposure to foreign currency (liabilities)

Ar at March 31,2023

189

USD

Palticulars

3,347

5.970

Financial assets
Trade receivables

Net exposure to foreign currency (assets)

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Net exposure to foreign currency (liabilities)

5.970

EUR

38

4l

704

6,083

rg:n " 1. 50,

GBP

131

Others

MUMBAI.63

7'r4

GBP

USD

1

703 t7

105

507

I
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2024

(32) Financial risk management framework (continued)

Sensitivity analvsis of currency risk
Any change with respect to strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various currencies as at March 37,2024 and lvl3lgtt
31,2023 would have affected the measurementoffinancial instruments denominated in respective currencies and affected equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates.

lmpact on proflt after tax and equity

(21s)

(1e)

zls

March 31, 2024

(222)
222

26
(26)

The following table gives details in respect of outstanding hedge contracts:

(fair valuation through profit and loss)

USD

EUR

19

5

(s)

3

(3)

1

(1)

4
(4)

Outstandinq Derivative contracts
The Group hedges exposures to changes in foreign currency, The counterparty for these contracts is a bank. Forward contracts are
valued at fair value through profit and loss and through other comprehensive income based on quotes received from the counter
party.

(in Rupees million)
As at

March 31, 2023

Particulars Notional amount
of contracts
(in million)

Notional amount
of contracts

(Rs in million)

(fair valuation through other comprehensive income)
USD

EUR

(fair valuation through other comprehensive income)
USD

- Increase by 5olo

- Decrease by 5olo

EUR

- Increase by 5olo

L7 L,477

5,184
634

4,28251

6 501

61

7

Sensitivity analysis of Outstanding derivative contracts
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) ofthe Indian Rupee against USD and EUR currencies would have affected the
measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency proflt or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases,

Impact on profit after tax and

T

194
(194)

24
(24\

Particulars

USD

- Increase by 5olo

- Decrease by 5olo

EUR

- Increase by 5olo

- Decrease by 5olo

GBP

- lncrease by 5%
- Decrease by 5olo

Others
- Increase by 5%
- Decrease by 5olo

As at
March 31, 2O24

Notional amount Notional amount
of contracts of contracts
(in million) (Rs in million)

Particulars

(fair through profit and loss)

USD

- Increase by 5olo

- Decrease by 5olo

EUR

- lncrease by 5olo

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

5o/o

i r"llt,li,

53

(s3)

and

160
(160)

19

?11N.4,

MUMBAI.63



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Anal@cs Private Limitd)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2O24

(32) Financial risk management framework (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a flnancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Groupt long-term 6961
obligations with floating lnterest rates,

Exposure 1o inlerest rate risk

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on the borrowing outstanding in the books as at March 3L,2024 pursuant to movement in

Term SOFR, The interest reset period or the amortization schedule is not fixed under this credit facility and hence the same has not
been hedged,

SensitiviW analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitlvity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings. as follows:

Particulars

The Group aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard 'rts ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to
its shareholders. The capital structure is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to
meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so
as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business.

Net gearinq ratio at the end of the reporting period is as follows

March 2023

(20)
)o

Ratio

Total Equity (B)

(2,841)

t4,199

o.20

3,256
(2,r32)

(1s1)
(2,e06)

(1,933)

(This space is

March3t,2O24

*
*?

Chanqe in Term SOFR
- Increase by 1%

(iii) Capital management

(26)

2,501
(812)
(7s)

(4,4ss)

March 31. 2O24

Borrowings
Less : Cash and cash equivalents
Less : Other bank balances

Less : Investment in liquid mutual funds and other
assets
Net Debt (A)

o.14

&

13,634

*

14th iloot

o

aHl
,o

MUMBAI-63



Fractal Analytics Limited
(fotmerly known as Fractal Amlytis Private Ljmited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3'-,2024

(33) Employee Stock Options Scheme (ESOP)

(a) The expense recognised for employee seruices received during the year is shown in the following table:

Particulars Y€r end€d

Employee Stock Options Scheme (Refer note b)

Management Stock Optons Scheme (Refer note c)

Employee Stock Options Scheme e"xpense pertaining

*This expense pertains to ESOP of subsidairy companies and expense has been recognised using black-scholes model as per the terms of the respectjve plans,

(b) Employee Sto€k Options Scheme

Movement of options Granted with weighted Average Exercise Price (WAEP)

ParticulaE

1,019

554

L4

Options outstanding at the beginning of
vear
ODtions qranted durinq the year

ODtions laDsed durinq the vear
Options settled/cancelled durinq tfie year

Options revived durinq the year

Options exercised durinq the year

787

2,120
1.026

846
640
506

The options granted under the above Scheme, shall vest in graded manner over a period of 1-4 years. Each optlon will entitle the participant to one equity share.

The weighted average fairvalues ofthe options granted during the yearwas Rs 933 (March 37,2O23: Rs 1109).
The weighted average stock price of the options granted during the year ended March 31, 2024 is Rs 2,270 (March 31, 2023 iRs 2,270).

Weighted average remaining contractial life (years) ofthe options based on the exercise price

Year ended
March 31. 2l}24

&1

307

15

963

As at March 3L- 2,)24
Nos WAEP Nos
25,97,341

2,24,650
(2,A2.139)

(100)

{1,19,661)
?a_q6-t ?t

952

2,270
7.021

846

621
t -n7R

28,56,378

2,6t,446
(2,34,810)

(ss,737)
3,000

(2,32,856)
25-97-341

he end of the vear 13.s2-746 aso 10.56,133

Exercise Price
No. of ogtions outsbndinq
Weighted average remaining contractJal

limit options one vide Circular Resolution No: 20/2023-24/NRC dated April 3, 2024.

The fair valuation of options has been done by an lndependent firm of Charbrcd Accounhnts on the date of grant using the tslack-Scholes Model,

The key assumptions in the Back-Scholes Model for calcuhlnq fairvalue as on the date ofqrant:

67,511

Particulars

Risk Free Rate
Option Life (Based on Simplified Average Method)

Expected Volatilityx

ESOP

2023-24

5.45 - 9,!9 o/o

5 to 14 years

9.76 o/o

- 63.9r ok

0.2s

1*
5,000

4{!i
15,922

0.3( 5.\2

280
1/1 1,539

s.0(

595
32,50(

610
24,7O0

7.r2 7.69

640
2,47,209

7.96

846
15,94,858

9.01

2.270
3,96.850

I{I]MBAI.63

xExpected volatil?ty during the expected term of the options is bas€d on historical

ESOP

2022-23

Groups publicly traded equity shares during the period equivalent to the expected term oi the optlons.



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fradal Amlytis Private Limited)

Notes to Consoladated financial statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2024

(33) Employee Stock Options Scheme (EsOP) (continued)

(c) Management Stock Options Scheme

the Company. The plan is an equity setued plan. The management personnel compensation expense for the year has been determined on fair value basis,

Movement of Options Granted with Weiqhted

Particulars
WAEP

at

Options outstanding at the beginning of
Vear
Options qranted durinq the year
Options lapsed durinq the year
Options settled/cancelled durinq the year
Options exercised durinq the year

The options granted under the above Scheme, shall vest in graded manner over a period of 14 years. Each option will entitle the participant to one equity share.

The weighted average fair values of the options qranted during the year was Nil (March 31, 2023: 1,351).
The weiqhted average stock price of the options qranted durinq the year ended March 31, 2024 is Nil (March 31, 2A23 :2,270).

The fair valuation of oDtion has been done bV an independent firm of Chaftered Accountants on the date of qrant usinq the Binomial Model.

Exeftise Price
No. of options outstandinq
Weighted average remaining contractual

3,7t,830

*includes remaininq contractual life of both time based and performance based MSOPS

The key assumptions for Binomial Model for calcuhting fair value as on the date of grant:

Particulars
MSOP

r,579
r,702
1,787

Risk Free Rate

Option Life
(Based on simDlified Averaqe Method)
Expecied Volatiliw*

*Expected volatility during the expected term of the options is based on
term of the oouons.

5.75o/o 6
5 years

19,98o/o -39.76Yo

obserued market price of the Groups publidy traded equity shares during the period equivalent to the expected

Time based Perfomance based Time based
As at March 31, 2024 at 3 2024 As at March 3L,2023

No. of options WAEP No, of options WAEP No. of options WAEP No. of options

r0,60,602

ro.o7.279

(4s,049)

(8,271)

1,055

1,676

880
1.O29

2L,29,772

(1,00,434)

2(l,29334

1,o44

1,598

1,O16 10,60,602

10,55,156

53,016
(27,940)
(19,630)

1,054

1,580
7,702
1,s82

1.O55 27,.49.772

2L35,588

1,06,184
(s6,060)
(s6,040)

E Fh.l 
^f 

thF vFrr 6Sq{11 In /t ? ?s 67q 1 .i46

446
26,64,787

7.77

MSOP
)/Jta-)L

5,75o/o lo 7.L3o/o

5 years

I9.9AYo -39.761o
rlo/"

WBAI.63



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3L,2024

(34) Operating Segment

Basis of segmentation
The Group's segments are reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Group. The Group's businesses dr€ ds unslsl;

1) Fractal.ai segment leverage core competencies in AI, engineering, design, along with deep domain expertise, and are complemenl6d ry;16
our functional capabilities. We leverage these competencies to provide bespoke AI consulting services and AI products, as a part of the
Fractal.ai segment

In addition, we set up proprietary AI businesses to leverage the growing maturity of ceftain AI products and expand their adfl1s556[lg
market beyond our target set of Must Win Clients and specific geographies.

2) Fractal alpha segment is focused on incubated and acquired Intellectual property solutions which includes Asper.ai, Flyfish.ai, Analytics
Vidhya, Theremin and Eugenie. These pre-built AI products/ designed to address both horizontal cross-industry and vertical industry-specific
use cases are easy-to-use and can be efficiently deployed by clients with limited implementation effots or customization.

During the current year, the Group has reclassified Crux.ai and Senseforth.ai from Alpha segment to Fractal.ai as the Group is building and
strengthening its Gen AI offerings to its clients and considers these products to augment the offerings at Fractal.ai segment via Fractal.ai's
Go-to-market (GTM) strategy resulting into an increase in buying centers for clients beyond traditional data analytical services. The CoDM
also expects the change will bring in synergies between the Crux.ai and Senseforth.ai teams and Fractal.ai teams in terms of cost and
efficiency.

While Fractal.ai and Fractal Alpha are distinct segments of the Fractal Group, both segments contribute collaboratively to create solutions
with both product and services in their scope to solve business problems of clients and cater to both the AI services and software markets.

Geographical information
The Group's operations are majorly based in America, Europe and APAC & Others.

Segment accounting policies
Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have
been followed for segment reporting :

i) Segment revenue includes income directly identifiable with the segments.

ii) Operating income is derived after deducting employee related expenses and other expenses of respeciwe segments

iii) Expenses and Incomes that are directly identifiable with the segments are considered for determining the segment result. Expenses and
Income which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments are included under "Unallocated".

vi) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identiflable with the respective segments. Unallocable corporate assets and liabilities
represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

Summarised segment information for the years ended March 3L, 2024 and March 3L, 2023, is as follows:
(in Rupees million)

Total

Unallocated Total

19,69 1

(31s)

190 (27) 19,854

(1,183)

13 miliion and Rs 58 million respectively

431
(4s3)
(781)
(2e0)

5,410

"ri

UnallocatedFractal,ai Fractal,alpha

365

(494)

2r,6t5

L,233

March 3 2023

Pafticulars

Operating incomex
Other income

Finance cost
Depreciation and amortisation
Share of (loss) of associate
Exceptional items

Profit before tax
*Operating income for Fractal,ai and Fractal alpha segment is net ofone

Fractal,ai

Particulars

ue operations

Operating incomex

Other income

Finance cost
Depreciation and amortisation
Share of (loss) of associate
Exceptional items

Profit before tax
*Operating income for Fractal.ai and Fractal alpha segment is net of one time bonus paid of Rs 347 million and Rs 36 million respectively.

(s)

Intersegment

Fractal.alpha

elimination
(17)

(788)

734
456

(44s)
(832)
(163)
(ss)

(80)

Ccl\tral
rril

N:sl'l
N;:i:r:

!\eslafn

Intersegment

*

elimination

Gor;;
]7:
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Pnvate Limited)
Notes to Consolidated linancial statements as at and for year ended March 31,2024

(34) Operating Segment(continued)

Country

Customer

12,290
5,567

6,380
5,389
2,430

t4,323
4,209
3.431

12,855
s,808

4,993

7,862
5,777

55

M

13,339
3,467

As at
Mar€h 31/ 2023

Europe

APAC & Others

Geographical non-current assets ( comprisinig of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill, other intangible assets,
income tax assets and other non current assets) are allocated based on the location of the assets

Information regarding geographical non-current assets is as follows:

Country As at
Mar€h 3t 2023

Disclosure of top customer having sales more than 10 o/o of the total revenues
(in Rupees million)

As at
March 31, 2024

15o/o

.!r l

t\

Capital Employed
Fractal.ai
Fractal a[pha
Unallocated

March 31, 2024

Geographical disclosure
Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location ofthe customer. Information regarding geographical revenue is as follows

Segment Asset
Fractal.ai
Fractal alpha

Unallocated

Segment Liabilities
Fractal,ai
Fractal alpha

Unallocated

Customer A

March 31, 2024

m

As at

9l

America
APAC & Others

As at
March 31, 2024

5,910
t78

America

4,068
2,439

19

MUMBAI.63

6,525

3,919
1,840

JJ

I2o/o

Co

792

As at
Mar€h 31, 2023

!,nd
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Subsidiaries

(a) Subsidiaries directly held
Fractal Analytics Inc, USA

Fractal Private Limited, Singapore
Cuddle Artificial Intelligence Private Limited*
Final Mile Consultants Private Limited
Theremin AI Solutions Private Limited*
Eugenie Technologies Private Limited
Asper.AI Technologies Private Limited
(upto August 31, 2023)^^

Senseforth AI Research Private Limited
Analytics Vidya Educon Private Limited
Neal Analytics Services Private Limited
Fractal Alpha Private Limited

(b) Subsidiaries indirectly held
Fractal Analytics UK Limited
Fractal Analytics (Switzerland) GmbH

Fractal Analytics (Canada) Inc.
Fractal Analysis Germany GmbH (Germany)

Fractal Analytics Netherland B.V (Netherlands)

Cuddle,ai Inc,*^
4i Consulting Inc,
(merqed in Fractal Analvtics Incorporated, USA from April 01, 2023)
Limited Liability Company Symphony (Ukraine)
Final Mile Consulting LLC

Fractal Analytics Sweden AB

Fractal Analytics (Shanghai) Limited
Fractal Analytics Malaysia SDN BHD

Fractal Analytics Australia Pty. Ltd

Theremin Multistrategy Fund LLP

Asper.AI Limited
Asper.AI Inc
Asper.AI Technologies Private Limited
(w.e.f September 01, 2023)^^
Senseforth AI Research Inc
Eugiene Inc.
Neal Analytics LLC^^^
Fractal Analytics FZ LLC (w.e.f September 02,2022)
Fractal Frontiers Inc
Analytics Vidhya Inc (w.e.f August 08, 2023)
Fractal Japan KK (w.e.f August 21, 2023)

Country of
incorporation/Place of

brrsinoqq

Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3L,2024

(35) Pafticulars of subsidiaries considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

United States of America
Singapore
India

India
India
India

India

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 3\ 2OZg

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

97.30o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.000/o

98.31olo

100.00o/o

97.30o/o

100.00o/o

India
India
India
India

United Kingdom
Switzerland
Canada

Germany
Netherlands

United States of America

The Group is enagaged in principal activity of Analytics, Machine Learning and Artificial Intelligence.

*Based on equity holding excluding dilution dueto conveftible instruments and employee stockoption pool of subsidiaries companies,

100.000/o

55.92o/o

100.00%
100.000/o

United States of America

^Subsequent to year end, Cuddle.ai Inc. one of step down subsidiary has filed for dissolution dated April 24,2024 with State of Delaware to
be effective from March 3I,2024.

100,00o/o

100,000/o

55.920/o

100.00%
100.000/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.000/o

100.00%
100.000/o

98,31%
100,00o/o

100,000/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

94.760/o

94.760/o

100,00o/o

94.I2Vo
100,00%
100,000/o

100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00o/o

100.00%
100.000/o

100.00%

Ukralne

United States of America
Sweden

China

Malaysia

Australia
India
United Kingdom
United States of America

India

United States of America
United States of America

United States of America
United Arab Emirates
United States of America

United States of America
Japan

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00%
100.00o/o

94.760/o

94.760/o

94.760/o

100.00%

94.L2o/o

100,00%
100.000/o

100,00%

55.92o/o

100.00o/o

^^During the year parent entity had sold the shares of Asper.ai Technologies Private Limited to Asper,AI Inc, accorindgly Asper.AI
Technologies Private Limited has become indirect subsidiary w.e.f September 0I,2023.

^^^Subsequent to year ended March 3I,2024 subsidiary Neal with Fractal Analytics

'ii{,1,: ,11, fi
(!)

MU\{BAI.63
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Fractal Analytics Limited
(former/y known as nadal Analytics Private Linited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3\ 2024

(36) As p€r Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013, the required information on subsidiaries is provided in the following table:

Addational information, as required under schedule IiI to the Companies Act, 2013, of entities consolidated as subsidiaries :

For year ended March 31, 2024

l02o/o
lo/c

Oo/c

48

-io/n

-1o/"

-lo/t

-86o/o

50 -2O2o/o
(0) 244o/o

(2)

r0) t4v"

lOOo/h

(220)

Si

vtics Vidva Educon Private Limited

Private Limited

Senseforth AI Research Inc

UK Limited

Share in Profit or Loss

As o/o of
Consolidated
Profit or Loss

Net Assets i,e Total Assets
minus Totdl Liabilities

4o/a

Name of the subsidiaries

-70/a

As o/o of
Consolidated

Net Assets

As o/o of
consolidated
Profit or Loss

Oo/a

As o/o of
Consolidated
Profit or toss

Amount Amount

-Io/o

Fractal Private Limited 1790k

0o/o

-1460/o 45 -I69o/a

587Fractal USA l2Oo/o Oo/o

Fractal Private ( 132)

0o/o

00h Oo/o 'Lo/a

Netherlands B.V

J

Cuddle Artificial -I59o/a

Amount

795
Final 14ile Consultants Private Limited 1B

4o/o

BHD

0o/o 3s
1

Oo/"

0o/o (0) Oo/"

-Io/o 5o/o

16

31 -2o/o

- 1o/"

AI 2o/o 17o/o (94)

o

Share in OCI

230k
Neal

(140)

Seruices Private Limited 183) Oo/n 0o/o

Fractal -40/o

-145o/o

-l 50/6 6J
0o/o

799

Oo/" 00/"

265

Inc -3o/o s40h

/3r)

0o/o (54) jo/a

0o/o

-2o/o -9o/o

(6s5)

0o/o -IOD/o

/1R) oo/" jo/a 00h
(0)

Oo/"

7o/o

0 0o/o

/80)
Fractal -1o/"

3

-4o/o

oo/.

0o/o (33)
(10)

0o/o 2

795

Oo/o (1)

(ss3)

Oo/a

(29)

Amount

ook
284 Oo/o

Share in Total
Comprehensive Income

0o/o 0 430

93o/o

jo/a

3o/o 373

18

17o/o ook

(\o/"

0o/o

(6.s9s)

(361 )

4,259

142

) lo/"

1O0o/o 14.199

oo,/o

a00o/o

Amount appearing as zero denotes amount less than Rs 1 million

6

associate entity accounted

-Io/"

(4)
1?q?\

Oo/o

0o/o

11 15)

-Io/o

Oo/o

Oo/"

0o/o

r5)

0o/o

2

rg)

5o/o

9o/o

Qo/o

0o/o

00h

( 12)

83

0o/o

60/o

(298)

2o/o

(1)

fio/"

io/a

oo/"

I32/o

Oo/"

-\o/"

0

844

48

(1)

115o/n

oo/n

2

-4o/o

47o/o

Oo/o

\o/"

Oo/o

-10k

-)o/n

)6

-10k

3oo/o

16,393

0o/o

'6o/n

23

-1o/o

180/o

0

2o/o

-790/o

0o/o

3

0o/o

7

oo/"

0o/o

-475o/o

Oo/n

-17r)A

ooa

3

222o/o

6Oo/o

Oo/"

1Oo/n

Oo/"

40o/o

Oo/"

955
( 1.212)

l3o/o

Do/a

0o/o

(218)

-qo/"

\4U\4BA1-63

Oo/a

-10/"

(72\

(s471

Oo/n

26

-lo/"

'Zo/c

Oo/o

-1o/"

lOOo/o

190/

0o/o

3

48

(7

440k



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as FradalAnalytics Private Ltntted)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3L,2024

(36) As per Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013, the required information on subsidiaries is provided in the following table:

Additlonal information. as required under schedule III to t}le Companies Act, 2013, of entities consolidated as subsidiaries :

For year ended March 31, 2023

L6o/o

B3o/o

5,120 lo/a

Lq44 100o/o

(20i
ook
oo/
ooh
20h

oo

ook

-lo/a
-2oo/d

ooh

5

36

6

-172o/o

1 s,t2I

-40/"

10Oo/o

Analvtics Inc.- USA

Tech

Net Assets r.e Total
Assets minus Total

Private

Amount

Inc
Limited

Li

As o/o of
Consolidated
Profit or Loss

Fractal
Fractal

7o/c

m

Share In Profit or Loss

-60h

I iehililiec

7o/c

Name of the subsidiaries
AS o/o of

Consolidated
Net Assets

Io/c

Private Limited l12o/o 15.005 -28o/o

60/"

L17

746 -630/" (1 )7)\ -600/.

Amount

0o/o 7 Oo/o

(79r\ 't6o/o

Limited

-1 5o/c

Final Mile Consultants Prlvate Limited la/a T7147 0o/o (0)

Theremin AI Solutions Private Limited

-1 olt

129
Private Limited ooh 1o/a

Share In OCI

-1o/o (1)

ooh (\o/

I

1o/n l0c

As o/o of
Consolidated
Profit or Loss

rok
-Io/o /1)

7o/c

Theremin

0
Neal Services Private Limited lo/c

(0)

IJ -2o/o

B.V

-2

Fractal 3o/o 3s3 764
4i lo/o

r1 q3\

ooh
i Inc. oo/,t (52]'

Total

(272\ -1ao/"

136

AI |o/a 104 -7o/" -?,0h

Oo/" 0o/o 0o/o

-3o/a

Oo/o

)o/" 243 -100/o

0o/o

81

0o/o 0

Adjustment for associate entity accounted

0o/o

0o/o Oo/o 0 Oo/o

GmbH jo/a

Amount

Oo/o 3 Oo/n

Inc.

Share in Total
Comprehensive Income

ook 54 2o/n

Ana Oo/a

2oo/o

Oo/t (lo/a

36
1 0o/o 0

0o/c Oo/o

'I3o/o

3
(0)

Fund LLP

Oo/n

Oo/" 0o/o

(432],

G24\ (427\

Non controlli

ie.AI INC

7-I2o/a -I74o/o (3,s36)
ustments 15.B?R) 150/o

As o/o of
Consolidated
Profit or Loss

330k

-7o/o

method

interest 10/" 203

lOOo/o

16

Amount appeann9 as zero denotes amount less than Rs I mtlllon

2o/a

Oo/o

(5)

20

24

4

0o/o

(143)

16

oo/"

-1 3o/"

6

oo/

Amount

9

-2\o/"

0

()o/t

io/n

-10o/o

0o/o

7

66

0

2B

-)oln

0o/o

'3o/o

(54)

31

ook

-Zo/a

0

0

2A

r?83.)

7o/n

-6o/n

Oo/o

2"/"

-460h

(262\

10h

Oo/"

oo/^

7

Oo/"

35

Io/c

I2o/a
-7 o/a

0o/o

-to/o

-2Io/o

15

70k

-71o,/o

4,479

24
(26(

oo/"

Oo/a

8o/n

6
(30)

10/

Oo/o

13,634

0o/o

ook

7630/o

l10a

\o/a

MUMBAI"63

446

\o/a

-40l'

\o/a

lOOo/n

Oo/a

io/"

2o/o

186)

ooh

35

ooh

Oo/o

16
80

-1 loh

no/"

260/o

97

526



Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerly known as Fractal Analytics Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements as at and for year ended March 3\ 2024

(37) hvestment in associate
The Group has 36.92 o/o (March 3L,2023 : 37.39 o/o) interest in Qure.ai Technologies Private Limited ('Qure.ai'). pudng
the previous year Qure.ai sought investment in its equity shares from external investors resulting in Group losing
control of Qure.ai. The Company has assessed that it has significant influence over Qure.ai and has considered it as
assocrate Company wrth ettect trom April 08,2022. For the administrative purpose, loss ot control and srgnrfrcant
influence thereafter is considered with effect from April 0t,2022.

Pursuant to this change in relationship, the Company has derecognised all the assets and liabilities as at April 01, 2022
and has recorded the investment in Qure.ai at fair value. This has resulted in gain of Rs 5,410 Millions which has been
recorded in statement of Profit and loss for the previous year ended March 31, 2023.

(")
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Opening value of investment in associate company 4,479 4j{
Loss for the year (165) (289)
Remeasurement of retained interest in associate (SSt -

(b) Summary of Statement of Balance sheet As at

Non current assets
Current assets
Non current liabilities
Current liabilities

3,270
(e6)

(c) Summary of Statement of Profit and loss

Revenue from operations and other income
Net loss after tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Group's share of loss in associate
Group's share of Other comprehensive income in associate
Group's share of Total cgmprehensive income in associate

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Year ended
March 31, 2023

t,540 913
(442) (778)
(448) (776)
(163) (2e0)

(2) 1(16s) (28e)

..L

Year ended
March 31, 2024

As at

193

tuirlh ()

li;scl,-
N-":i ,

&

*
Centnl l)

334
3,3t2

(1e)

\{u\[BN'63



Profit/(Loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Parent
Weighted average number of equity shares ffr Basic EPS (in nos)
Add : Potential equity shars on exercise of optjons (in nc)
Wclghted averaga mrmbgr of equlty rhar6 for Flluled EPS (ln ngs)

Fractal Analytics Limited
(formerlv known as fracal Analvig Private Linited)

t{otes to Consolidated fimrcial statemetrts as atand for ydr ended Mardr 31, 2024

Partldla6

Rupe6 million)

Earnlngs per share (ln Rs.):
- Basic

- Diluted
Face value per equity share (Rs.)

(1s,60)
(1s.60)

1.00

As at
March 31, 2O2a

Y€r ended
March 31, 2023

2,030
3,03,20,355

23,82,t00
3,27,02,455

options granEd to employees under the stoc* option phn are considered to be potential equity shar6. They have been induded in tie determination of diluted
earnings per share to the extent to which they are diluuve. In view of losses during he cunent year March 31, 2024, tfie options are anti-dilutive. Actrrdingly,
ftere is no variatlon between basic and dilutive earnings per share.

(39) Cmmitment6 and ontingst liabilitis

Pa.tifllaI

rThe Grcup believs that thff daims are not tenable and hence no provision has been made in this regard. The amount ofcontingent liabilitis is dlsdosed based
on the best possiue estimate whidl in turn is basd on the likelihood of pGible outcomes of proreedings by the tax authoritiG and the possible cash outflow will
be known on setdement ofthe pr(eedings by ble tax au$torities.

(40) Ctrporate $cial Eporeibility

Ysr ended
March 31, 2024

(475)
3,04,7t,259

27,38,085
3,J2t09t344

Panifllar

(41) OtherStatutoryInformodon
(i) The Company hag mt advanced tr looned or invested funds (either fm borrowed funds or share premrum or anyother 9urc6 tr kind offunds) to or in any other pers(s) or
entiMi6), imluding foreign entitks ("lntermediaries"), with the undeEtanding, whether recodet in w.iting tr otheMis, that the Intermediary shalll

(a) directly or indiredly lend or inwst in odrer perens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Cmpany ("tl6mate Benefrciaries'); or
(b) provide any q@rantee, s@rity q the like to or on behalf of the Ultamate Eeneficiaris

(ll) The Company has not recelved any tundsfrom any per$n(s) orenuty(16), lncludlnq forelgn entltles ('Fundhg ParU6"), wtth the undeEbndtng, whether rerded h rvrttng or
(vii) The Group dfts not have any such transaction which is not rcorded in the books of il@unt that has ben surendered or disdo*d as income during the year in the

(42) The financial statemenls were authorised for issue by the Parent's Board of dlrectoE on June 17, 2024.

As per our report of even date attaded

For rnd on behalfofthe Borrd of DlructoF of

As at
March 31, 2023

11

76

7

66.96
62,08

1,00

7

7

FEctalFoTBSR&Co,LtP
Chartered A@untanE

Limited

ClNiFirmt Registration Numben 101248WW-100022

\

J

Rajsh MchE
Panner
llembership Number: 103145

Mumbai
Date: lune 17,2024

London
Date: June 17, 2024

19

sasha Golu MirdEndani
Dh{tor
DIN:01179921

""M",Company Sffretary
l'lembeEhip numberi A17336

Capibl commitsnents

(b) Conting€nt liabiliU€s
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt:

A9 at

9B

Corporate $cial Hporeibility experditurc

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Conrpanies Act, 2013
Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset
(ii) Purposes o$er than (i) above
(iii) natu€ ofCSR activities

i) Contribution to Public Trust
ii) Conbibution to Charitable Trust (The amount during he year has been spent towards scholarship support for
higher education, promotion of bamboo planbtion and vegetable cultivation in Tribal part, providing artificial aids
and appliances to disabled, etc.)

London
Date: June 17, 202{

London
Date: June 17, 2024


